
TOWN OF NORWICH 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 

AGENDA 
Thursday, October 16, 2025 

SITE VISIT at 5:15 PM:  Application #54DE25: Development Envelope on undeveloped land; Applicant(s): 
Gregory and Emilie Calvello Hynes; 00 Dutton Hill RD; Parcel ID: 20-060.000; Rural Residential (RR) 
District.  

***MEET AT PROPERTY at 5:15 PM (directly across from 100 Dutton Hill RD)*** 

Meeting at 6:30 PM 
Via Zoom and in Person at Tracy Hall: 
Topic: Development Review Board 
Time: October 16, 2025 06:30 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89931976970 
Meeting ID: 899 3197 6970 
888 475 4499 US Toll-free 

Call to Order 

1. Approve Agenda

2. Public Comments

3. Public Hearings:

a. Application #54DE25: Development Envelope Review on undeveloped land; Applicant(s): 
Gregory and Emilie Calvello Hynes; 00 Dutton Hill RD; Parcel ID: 20-060.000; Rural 
Residential (RR) District.

b. Application #53SPR25: Site Plan and Conditional Use Review for an Open Air Market and 
Multi-Use Building; Applicant(s): Upper Valley Agricultural Association (Norwich Farmers 
Market); Landowner: Rose Z Dyke Trust; 00 US Route 5 S; Parcel ID: 15-042.000; Rural 
Residential (RR) District.

4. Approve Minutes – September 18, 2025

5. Zoning Administrator Update and Upcoming Matters

6. Other Business

7. Adjournment

Future Meeting: TBD  

DRB Minutes available at: http://norwich.vt.us/development-review-board/ 

To receive copies of Town agendas and minutes, please send an email request to be added to the town email 
list to the Town Manager’s Assistant at: manager-assistant@norwich.vt.us 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89931976970
http://norwich.vt.us/development-review-board/
mailto:manager-assistant@norwich.vt.us


  

 1 

TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 

 
Applicant Info and Exhibit List 

 
     

Applicants/Landowners: Gregory Hynes and Emilie Calvello Hynes 
    6016 Open Range Trail 
    Austin, TX  78749 
 
APPLICATION #54DE25: Development Envelope Review; Applicant(s)/Landowners: 
Gregory Hynes and Emilie Calvello Hynes; 00 Dutton Hill RD; Parcel ID: 20-060.000; Rural 
Residential (RR) District. 
 
The record in this case includes the following documents: 
 
1. Application #54DE25, (9-18-25) 
2. Overview Letter to Hynes by Sanborn, Head & Associates, Inc. (09-18-2025) 
3. Geotechnical Summary Letter to Burnham by Sanborn, Head & Associates, Inc. (11-5-
2023)  
4.Geotechnical Investigation Report to Hynes by John Turner Consulting, Inc. (01-24-2024)    
5.Boundary Line Plan for Hynes by Pathways Consulting, LLC (09-24-2025) 
6.Existing Conditions Plan for Hynes by Pathways Consulting, LLC (09-2025) 
7.Site Plan for Hynes by Pathways Consulting, LLC (09-2025)          
8.Abutter Certificate of Mailing (10-01-2025) 
 



T'OWN O{Ì NOITWICH, VER.MONT

.{PPLICATION FOR ZONTNTG PERMtrT
#s-qPeâJ

Owner(s) Gregory es and Emilie Calvello HynesHyn

Mail Addr.ess. 6016 Opon Range Trail 1Or' Austin ST rx Zip zïTag
Day phone: 7208784084 Eve Phone: Email: gthynes'l @gmait.com
Applica n t (if Differenr) . Same

MailAddress: Town
Day Phone

ST zip 

-

Eve Phone: Email:
Description of Proposed Development: Estabtishm ent of development enverope on Lot 60 Dutton Hiil Road for fu ture residence,
accessory structures, driveway , and onsite septic.

Street Address: Dutton Hill Rd

ZoningDisrricr: n/ Vn I VR II VB C/t Ae
Tax Map Lot# 20 -60 Lot Size: 4.3 ac

Building Setbacks- Road Right-oÊway: _20' Right Boundary: nla p.o.' n/aLeft 30+l-
Size of Building(s)/Additions: Strucrure A: Width 98, Lerrgth 24' Heig¡t _
Structure B: Width Length glrt 

- 

Area: Footprint of Structure 6 2,352'Hei
AdditionalFootprint of Structure B (if any) Total # of Parking Spaces 

_
Estimated Date of Cornpletion: 07t30t2026 Estimated Value $ # of Bedrooms 3
*'t*****>t*+**:!tFtr*r}l3t*ttt¡**å{**t¡r:ß*)F)r*{.*)k:fi{.****{i**,1.*r.,l.lr:t>lr*tr<***

* {. * t * * * :l. tr ì! * {r * )t rl. )& t :& * I. {r * :lr :ß )ìr * rr
Please Attach: Site plan with building locations, well & septic locations, roads, driveways, and streams. Drawing offootprint of new construction and outlin es of additional flool.s. Elevation Drawing of rnulti-story buildingsThe undersigned hereby agrees that the proposed development shall be built in accordance rvith theforegoing statements, attached plans, and in accordance with the zoning and subdivision regulations of theTown of Norwich, and certifies that the above is true, correct, and com plete. The owner consents to inspectionsofthe real estate that is the subject of the application by the times,

¡¡.0910712025
:ß *:i. rl3 t,Ft*>tt,F+{cttli

Signature of Landowner (or Authorized Agent)
{< d! * * * * * d. * :ß * * * * dr * * * * * * >F * * * * ;F *,1.,1: * * * + lr {.

Zoning Office C hecklist:
_ Flood Hazard Area

_ Wetlands

_ Septic Location

_ Water Supply

_ Parking
_ Shoreline

_ Aquifer Protection

_ Permit Conditions

_ Agriculfural Exemption

Comments:

Additional Permits Required :

Subdivision
Conditional Use

_ Site Plan Review

t{rdr {i {< f x *****)t**;!*rl.**}k***,t** **

_ Variance

_ PRD

_ Driveway Access
Wastewater

Fees:
Base Fee
Sq. Ft. x _
# of Lots
Recording
Other

$ a ðù-ú'Þ
$

Datesq-K. J J.
ç:ãYTr-

$

$

$

Signature of Zoning Administrator

lS" oÒ

rotul 
--$ãß;7t

Date Paid
To Finance

tiq -lb -,)
sí'|cví¡,

Action
Received
Complete
Granted

Refused
Posted at Site -4:ãq:r-
AppealBy
Effective
Expires

Date
Application/Permit8/11

'Ð g g Pul"i 't- I'lt*'Y lû- ll,,')i'

# DC

Exhibit 1



SANBORN

Mr. Greg Hynes

60 Dutton Hill Road

Norwich, VT 05055

HEAD
L87 Soint Poul Street, Suite 201

Burlington, VT 0540L

September L8,2025
File No. 6569.000

Re Geotechnical Evaluation
60 Dutton Hill Road

Norwich, VT 05055

Dear Mr. Hynes

Sanborn, Head & Associates, lnc. (Sanborn Head) is pleased to submit this memorandum to you

regarding the property located on Tax Assessor Map 20, Lot 60 on Dutton Hill Road in Norwich,

Vermont (Site). This work is based on our electronic correspondence with you and Jeff Goodrich
of Pathways Consulting.

BACKGROUND

Based on our correspondence and previous work at the Site, the parcel is currently a vacant lot
and contains a ravine and signs of erosion. lt is our understanding that you are looking to build

a home and on-site wastewater disposalseptic system on the Site property and this parcel is

owned by you. Along with our correspondence on February 6,2025 we received a Geotechnical
lnvestigation Report written by John Turner Consulting, lnc. (JTC) dated January 24,2024, plans

by Otterman Surveying & Septic Design with test pit logs, and plans for site development by

Pathways Consulting, LLC,

ENGINEERING OPINION

It is our engineering opinion based on review of the test pits logs by others and the proposed

location of the residential structure, that there is no concern for instability of the existing slope

to the south (that grades down to Bragg Brook) as it relates to the proposed construction.

We have attached the following documents that support this opinion including,
¡ Geotechnical Summary Letter written by Sanborn, Head & Associates, lnc. dated

November 5,2023;
o Boundary Plan for Gregory Hynes by Pathways Consulting, LLC dated September 2025;
¡ Existing Conditions Burham Tax Map 20, Lot 60 by Pathways Consulting, LLC dated

November 18 2022; and,
o Site Plan tor Gregory Hynes by Pathways Consulting, LLC dated August 2025.

We do recommend that some low lying vegetation is established on exposed soil slopes to
prevent further erosion as well as appropriate site grading to prevent further runoff on to the
exposed soil slopes.

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call us.

Sanborn, Head & Associates. lnc. sanbornhead.com

#54DE25 Exhibit 2



Very truly yours,

SANBoRN, Heno & AssoctRtes, ltrtc.

,árw
Sllawn P. Kelly'Ph.D. P.E.

Vice Presiderlt

SPK: spk

Encl. Geotechnical Summary Letter
Boundary Plan

Existing Conditions
Site Plan

September 1-8, 2025

6569.00 60 Dutton Hill Geotech Evaluation.docx

6569.00
Poge 2

Sanborn, Head & Associates, lnc. sanbornhead.com



SANBORN

Mr. David Burnham
65 Pickney Street, #3

Boston, MA02LL4

HEAD
L87 Soint Poul Street, Suite 201-

Burlington, VT 05401

November 5,2023
File No. 5219.00

Re: Geotechnica I Summary Letter
Lot 60 Dutton Hill Road Property Geotechnical Evaluation
Norwich, VT 05055

Dear Mr. Burnham

This letter summarizes a site visit made on June 1"0, 2022, review of published data, and
subsequent review of a survey performed by Pathways Consulting, LLC (Pathways) dated July 6,

2O23 for Lot 60 on Dutton Hill Road in Norwich, Vermont (the Site), This letter has been
prepared bySanborn, Head &Associates, lnc. (Sanborn Head)on behalf of the Mr. David

Burnham (Client) in accordance with our proposal dated May L7,2022, and is subject to the
Limitations stated in Attachment A.

BACKGROUND

Lot 60 on Dutton Hill Road is a 4.3 acre lot in Norwich, VT. lt is bounded by Dutton Hill Road to
the north, Bragg Hill Road to the south and residential wooded lots to the east and west. Figure

1 provides a locus plan. Figure 2 provides the boundary survey dated June 1, L990.

The northwest corner of the site is fairly level and an existing slope that grades down to Bragg

Brook (see Figure 3 LIDAR Plan on Aerial Overlay provided by Pathways). At the Bragg Brook
elevation, the topography slopes back up to Bragg Hill Road just south of Bragg Brook.

Sanborn Head was provided Figure 4 presenting a proposed buildable area on Lot 60. We were
asked to provide an opinion on the proposed layout and evaluate the slope condition just south
of the proposed buildable area above Bragg Brook.

SITE RECONNAISSANCE

Sanborn Head personnel along with Jeff Goodrich of Pathways and Cheryl and Kelsey Herrmann
of RE/MAX Group One REALTORS of Norwich, VT performed a site reconnaissance visit on June

1,0,2022 that included visual observations of the slopes in question and surrounding areas.

Selected photographs from that site visit are included in Attachment B. No subsurface
exploration or global stability analysis was performed. Based on the topographic information
from Figure 3 and visual observations, it appears that the approximately 60 to B0-foot-high
slope has had three (3) historic slope movements on the southern slope face (see Figure 5 and

Attachment B site photographs).

The observed slope failures had vertical soil movement at the top of slope with a two (2) to four
(4)foot thick soilwedge that has slid down the slope face. The exposed soils are clay soils that

Sanborn, Head &Associates, lnc. sanbornhead.com

#54DE25 Exhibit 3



November 5, 2023
Lot 60 Dutton Hill Road Geotechnicsl Summory Letter

have some sand and gravel and cobbles and boulder throughout (i.e., a glacialtill deposit), and

the soils are saturated. The site is mapped as a GlacialTill by the State of Vermont Agency of
Natural Resources ANR Natural Resources Atlas and the surficial soils are definitely more clayey
than sandy. A small portion of the lot (southeast corner) is mapped as a delta gravel but not
observed on site.

At the bottom of the slope (at Bragg Brook elevation) bedrock outcrops were observed. The

site is mapped by the State of Vermont Agency of Natural Resources ANR Natural Resources

Atlas as an Andesite rock. Directly to the east, the bedrock is mapped as slate. Visual
observations of the exposed bedrock appear to be slate rock.

DrscussroN
The face of the southern slope appears to have had substantial surface water runoff over the
years (the site is graded down to the south) and the surficial soils have become weakened over
time. Exposed bedrock at the bottom of slope would indicate that the observed slope failures
are most likely "infinite slope" failures related to surface water drainage (i.e., surface water
saturating the surficial soil and causing erosion of the slope faces) and not related to a global

instability of the slopes (í.e., mass slope movements that would extend north on the
property). lnfinite slope failures are shallow failures and tend to continue "chewing" out the
slope face because after each failure, more soil is exposed to surface water runoff which results
in more erosion. Global slope failures are deeper seated and involve deeper soils on the slope
face.

The stability concern at this lot is there are a number of "fresh" slope failures (we counted 3 but
there may be more) where the slope faces have exposed soils (i.e., no vegetation). Additional
surface water runoff onto this slope willcause further soil erosion and cause more soilto slide
downtoBraggBrook. Thereareafewlocationswhereitappearsthatsomeofthissurface
water may be coming from Dutton Hill (i.e., roadway drainage).

RECOMMENDATIONS

The following recommendations address the proposed site development:

1.. Buildable Lot Area. lt is our opinion that the lot is buildable only in the northwest
corner (as depicted on Figure 5), The construction of the proposed residential house

and septic tank should be within the clouded area on Figure 5. lf building outside of this
area, additional engineering and evaluation is recommended. Also, we recommend a

geotechnical engineer be present during the initial earthwork (i.e., site clearing and

foundation work) to evaluate the site soils and make additional recommendations as

needed.

2. Erosion control and surface water drainage. To reduce the potential for continued
erosion of the previously damaged slope, it is recommended that several steps are

taken including establish vegetation of the exposed slope faces (hiring and consultation
of a landscape architect is recommended) and regrading the site (during site
development) to prevent surface water from draining down the southern slope face.

5219.00
Page 2

Sanborn, Head &Associates, lnc sanbornhead,com



November 5, 2023
Lot 60 Dutton Hill Rood Geotechnicol Summary Letter

3. Long Term Monitoring. Slope monitoring is recommended after vegetation is

established. Witness stakes (or similar) are recommended to be placed on the slope
face and monitor for horizontal movement to the south. Witness stakes are grade

stakes placed in a straight line using a string line on the slope face (along the same

contour line, i.e., parallelwith the topography). The end stakes should be placed

outside of the historic movement and used as a frame of reference for future
monitoring. Alternatively, slope monitoring stakes can be surveyed (x,y,z coordinates)
and monitored with survey over time.

4. Permanent Slope Stabilization. lf slope movement is observed within Slope Areas L

through 3 (or new southern slope areas), additional engineering would be necessary

which would include a subsurface evaluation program (i.e., soil borings). Based on the
results of the subsurface evaluation program, a permanent stabilization program
recommendation would be provided. The recommendations could include slope
regrading, rip rap slope facing, etc.

CLOSING

We appreciate this opportunity to be of service to you. lf you have any questions concerning
this letter or require any further information, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Very truly yours,

SnruaonrurHrAD & AssocrATES, lNc.

^4*fr6{shaftn P. Kellev,/h.D., P,E.

Project Directof

SPK: spk

Encl. Figure 1- Locus Plan

Figure 2 - Plot Survey 20190601.

Figure 3 - LiDAR on Aerial Overlay
Figure 4 - Preliminary Lot Layout
Figure 5 - Buildable Area Plan

Attachment A - Limitations
AttachmentB-PhotoLog
Attachment C - Surficial and Bedrock Geology Maps

5219.00
Poge 3

P:\5200s\5219.00\Source Files\memo\20231105 Lot 60 Dutton Hill Road Summary Letter.docx

Sanborn, Head &Associates, lnc s¿nbornhead.com



Figures

SANBORN I nneo



11118122, l:03 PM

*
Norwich, W - 2020 Parcel map - lnteract¡ve Web Map

20.072.200

2&060.20{t
2&008,zrx,

20{166.000

20.058.1æ

êC I l-(

2G033.@0

Figure 1. Locus Plan

20.051.000

KoeÐ
?0.05t.000

20{52.200

20.056.ü12

20.062.00020.059.000

20-067,ü)0

20-r)68.100

2G068.r00
2Þ069,r00

https://map.nemrc.info/nemrc/maps/a5994f66-7517-11eb-a19f-06765ea3034e/Norwich, W -2020 Parcel map?print-preview=lrue&preview=true#zoo... 111



l.

I
Ì

- _--------

----r*

-l...-r.... __

r

li

I

AÚbDouio

Figure 3. P bu¡lding lot layout

Fa¡oc¡¡



ScÂl F: Æ SHOWN

DESIGNED BY:

oRAWN Sl: DPM

CHECKED 8Y:

DATE: 1l-18-22
x

PROJ. NO. 10488 SHEIT 1 OF 1

PATHWAYS CONSULTING, LLC
240 MECHANIC STREET, SUIÍE 1OO

LEBANON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03766
(603) 448-2200

EXISITNG CONDITIONS

BURNHAM
TAX MAP 20, LO'Î 60

DUTTON ROAD, NORWICH, VERMONT

Figure 3 - LiDAR Plan on Aerial Overlay

MADE
BY

CHECKED
BY

APPROVED
BY

REVISION
NÔ

OATE DESCRIPfION

- L ì-r"

i,l \l:l<i\l \t.l<\I I \()tl \

r BoRrzoNra: JAIUM Ú f^lL Pt¡Ni !a ¡ @a-1 (sÙwry FÊLl) FRoM Grs

2 V[RrrCAi ]Àruv: ñORlts ÂuÊRlüN JtRrCÁ- !^¡UM '9æ lMV83) ÉR0ú Cls

r pÀrHwÂYs coNsuL¡rc. Llc ,lrtr/t! 'ar vÀP, Lr0^F aND ?016 ÂaRrÁL
va6Rt OAfÂ ;OF "HrS tlAñ OdlÂrNED FkOV €RMSÍ CENIEts rOR

aEocRAPHtC \fORMAnON {vcg) {Ê 5rE.



J,

ø

6{
rit

'l

'l

_.e

(¡

s

t.!

.-r

,ìf.

sÞÍ

tt
.t
fq

r

,ô
a')
Þ
Jc

2124122,8:34 AM IMG_0057.jp9

¡

..llì
¡ril

s
t:
L

https :/imail, googl e.comlmail/u/0/#inbox?projector= 1

,rð
111



,d \¡,
LEGEND

ãISNG IRON PIPE OR RTN
üE OR ÉNCE POS
CÆP{O BEAÀF M FF SÍ
COMPM POIM

BOUNDÑ UNE

¡tGffi-oF-w^Y
BUIDINC SroK UNE

COMOUR (UDÆ)

cofouR (suml)
EæE GUW
HMüM
fa w/Lol No.

ZONING INFORMATION:
a Æ N0tE0

O Æ NOTEO

a

Dg
É

ç
I

z

GENERAI SURVEY NOTES:

r. HoRrzoNT& MluM: w gAE PWE GRID W8J (SUM EÐ ROM GIS

2. Ëåâf rîi,:fiïfüÊilj ilE*c^ wRïru DAruM 1eæ (Mws) mo' Grs

DATA /GPS OSWANOtr
i^nivÀE coNsLnNc. [c u¡uzÐ rax MAP, UDM ANo 2016 AERIaL

iM¡cERy DATA Fffi frts pw æTANEo moM wRMoNT cilffi FoR

FmRAPHIC INFoRMA¡ON (WGI) EB SIE'
pÃnure cqwrllc. [è coiucED sEucnw SURWY DÀTA Fffi frls
PUN lMfr HdGH üNE 202J.

J.

d

r-
o io 40 60 80 loo

IN FEET

20-59

1

Buildable area

-<

. -.'"::
- \740_ _

_ *?30--

3
LOPE Setback

(equals height of
slope where
here is an

existin failure

D[SIGNED

DRAWN BÍ DPM

CHECKED BY: î
07-06-23

sHErr 1 0FPROJ.

240 MECHANIC
LEBANON, NEW

(603)

PATHWAYS CONSULTING, LLC
SÍREET, SUITE 1OO
HÀMPSHIRE 03766
444-2200

EXISITNG CONDITIONS

BURNI{AM
TAX MAP 20, LOT 60

OUTTON ROAD, NORWICH, VERMONÍMADE
BI

CHECKED
BY

APPROVED
RIDATE DESCRIPTIONREVISION

NO.



Appendix A

Limitations

SANBORN I Hneo



ArrRcH¡vr¡rur A
L¡nnrrRr¡orus

Explorations
L. The analyses and recommendations submitted in this letter are based in part on the

information provided by Cheryl Hermann of RE/MAX Group One REALTORS of Norwich, VT

and Pathways Consulting, LLC and our visual observations. The nature and extent of
variations in our visual observations may not become evident until construction. lf
variations then appear evident, it will be necessary to re-evaluate the recommendations
of this report.

Review
2. ln the event that any changes in the nature, design, or location of the proposed

residential home are planned, the conclusions and recommendations contained in this
letter shall not be considered valid unless the changes are reviewed and conclusions of
the report modified or verified in writing by Sanborn Head.

Construction
3. lt is recommended that this firm be retained to provide soil engineering services during

the earthwork phase of the work. This is to observe compliance with the design concepts,
specifications, or recommendations and to allow design changes in the event that
subsurface conditions differ from those anticipated prior to the start of construction.

Use of Letter
4. This report has been preparedforthe exclusive use of the David Burnham forthe

proposed residential house construction on Dutton Hill Road in Norwich, Vermont, in

accordance with generally accepted soil and geotechnical engineering practices. No other
warranty, expressed or implied, is made.

5. This soil engineering report has been prepared for this project by Sanborn Head for
preliminary design purposes only and is not sufficient to prepare an accurate bid.
Contractors wishing a copy of this report may secure it with the understanding that its
scope is limited to preliminary design considerations only.

P:\5200s\5219.00\Source Files\memo\Attachment A\Attachment A - L¡m¡tat¡ons.docx



Appendix B

Photo Log

SANBORN I Hneo



Arrncnvrrrur B

Pnoro Loc

Photo L. Dutton Hill Road looking west (site to left of photograph)

Photo 2. Slope Area 1 showing soil movement on southern slope (note vertical face on left of photograph).

Sanborn, Head & Associates, lnc. sanbornhead.com



Photo 3. Slope Area 2 showing soil movement on southern slope (note vertical face on left of photograph)

Photo 4. Slope Area 3 showing soil movement on southern slope (note vertical face on left of photograph).

November 5,2023
P h oto Lo g_5 2 L9.00. d o cx

s919.00
Page 2

Sanborn, Head & Associates, lnc, sanbornhead.com



Photo 5.Exposed soils on slope face

Photo 6. Toe ofslope along Bragg Brook (note exposed bedrock in brook on right hand bank)

November 5, 2023
P h oto Lo g_5 2 L9.00. d o cx

591"9.00
Poge 3

Sanborn, Head & Associates, lnc, sanbornhead.com



Appendix C

Surficial and Bedrock Geology Maps

SANBORN I Hnao





J
-
JOHN TURNER

CONSULTING

GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION REPORT

PROPOSED RESI DENTIAL STRUCTURE

60 Dutton Hill Road

Norwich, Vermont 05055

Prepared for

Greg Hynes

Prepared by

John Turner Consulting, lnc.

12Gregory Drive, Unit 7

South Burlington, Vermont 05403

,,'¡tlll llllt¡
OFVç

at)

JTC Project No. 23-04-107

January 24,2024

--ø
*

ç

NAL/rrutrtt\

V'L

Quentyn Guglielmo
Senior Geotechnical Engineer
qgugl iel mo@consu ltitc.com
Ph: (831) s78-6620

Stephen C. Lanne, P.E.

Vice President of Engineering
slanne@ consultitc.com
Ph: (413) 222-1,675

Construction Engineering & lnspections lGeotechnical I Environmental I Building Sciences
Special lnspections & Testing I Pavement Consulting I Forensic lnvestigations

www.consultjtc.com



J
J
JOHN TURNER

CONSULIING

January 24,2024

Greg Hynes

P:720-878-4084
E: gthynesL@gmail.com

RE: Geotechnical Investigation Report
Proposed Residential Structure
60 Dutton Hill Road

Norwich, Vermont

Dear Mr. Hynes

ln accordance with our proposal and your authorization to proceed, John Turner Consulting, lnc.

(JTC) has performed a geotechnical investigation for the above captioned project. Presented

herein and attached are the results of the site subsurface investigation, laboratory analysis

results, and our recommendations regarding the construction of the proposed project.

This report completes our scope of services under the approved contract. We appreciate the
opportunity to assist you and we look forward to working with you on this project through its
completion. Please do not hesitate to contact us if you have any questions or require additional
information.

Sincerely,
JOHN TURNER CONSULTING, INC

ffi. i-- ì-

Stephen C. Lanne, PE

Vice President of Engineering
sla n ne@consu ltitc.com
Ph: (413) 222-1675

Construction Engineering & lnspections lGeotechnical I Environmental I Building Sciences

Special lnspections & Testing I Pavement Consulting I Forensic lnvestigations

www.consultjtc.com

#54DE25 Exhibit 4



J
Table of Contents

1.0 tNTRODUCTtON..................

2.0 PROJECT TNFORMAïtON...................

2.7 SiteDescription................

2.2 Regional Geologic Setting

2.3 Proposed Development

3.0 GEOTECHNICALEXPLORAÏIONS.............

3.1- Test Pits........

4.0 GEOTECHNICALLABORATORYTESTING

5.0 SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS.

5.1 Soil Profile

5.1.1 Topsoil

5.7.2 Subsoil..........

5.1.3 Native Silt.....

5.1..4 GlacialTill.....

5.2 Refusa I

5.3 Groundwater

6.0 GEOTECHNICALANALYSIS& RECOMMENDATIONS............

6.1 Slope Considerations

6.2 Foundations..

6.3 Slab-On-Grade...................

6.4 Re-Use of Site Soils

6.5 Construction Monitoring and Quality Control Testing......

6.6 Additional Considerations...................

7.0 CLOSING

APPENDIX A: Limitations

APPENDIX B: Recommended Soil Gradation & Compaction Specifications

APPENDIX C: Recommended Design Parameters for Unbalanced Walls

APPENDIX D: Exploration Location Plan

APPENDIX E: Test Pit Logs & Key to Symbols and Description

APPENDIX F: Geotechnical Laboratory Testing Reports

APPENDIX G: Site Photographs

Geotechnical lnvestigation Report
Proposed Residential Structure

60 Dutton Hill Road

Norwich, Vermont
Page2 of 12

..3

..3

..3

..3

www.consultjtc.com



J
Geotechnical I nvestigation Report

Proposed Residential Structure
60 Dutton Hill Road

Norwich, Vermont
Page 3 of 12

1.0 INTRODUCTION

John Turner Consulting, lnc. (JTC) is pleased to present this Geofechnicol lnvestigotion Reportfor
the proposed residential structure project located at 60 Dutton Hill Road in Norwich, Vermont,
JTC conducted geotechnical explorations, laboratory testing, and engineering evaluations in

general accordance with our proposed scope of services submitted to Greg Hynes in JTC Proposal
#23-L441-, dated November 27, 2023.

The purpose of the geotechnical investigation was to obtain information on the subsurface

conditions at the site and to provide geotechnical engÌneering recommendations to support the
planning, design, and construction of the proposed development. Geotechnicalexplorations and

laboratory testing services were performed in December of 2023 and January of 2O24.

This report summarizes available project information, presents the geotechnical exploration and

laboratory testing programs, describes the subsurface conditions encountered, and provides

geotechnical engineering recommendations to support the planning, design, and construction of
the proposed project. The contents of th¡s report are subject to the attached Limitations.

2.O PROJECTINFORMAT¡ON

The following subsections provide general descriptions of the site, the regional geologic setting,
and the proposed development.

2.L Site Descript¡on

According to the existing conditions plan prepared by Pathways Consulting, LLC, the site is

comprised of an approximately 4.3-acre, undeveloped and wooded parcel. The site is bounded
by Dutton Hill Road to the north, Bragg Hill Road to the south, and residential wooded lots to the
east and west. The site slopes slightly to moderately downward in the northwest corner, from
approximately Elevation (El) = 747.0feet to the north to approximately El = 718.0 feet to the
south. The slope then appears to crest and slope downward steeply to approximately El = 624.0

feet to the south, where the topography levels out at Bragg Hill Road. Elevations contained within
this report are in reference to the North American Vertical Datum of 1-988 (NAVDBB).

The Geotechnicol Summory Letter prepared by Sanborn Head noted three (3) observed historic
slope failures within the steeper portion of the slope south, approximately 50 to 100 feet south

of the crest of the slope.

2.2 Regional Geologic Setting

Based on JTC's review of the Geotechnicol Summary Letter prepared by Sanborn Head and

surficial geologic maps of the area, the subsurface conditions at the site vicinity generally consist

of sand deposits and/or glacialtill.

www.consultjtc.com



J
-

Geotechnical lnvestigation Report
Proposed Residential Structure

60 Dutton Hill Road

Norwich, Vermont
Page 4 of 12

2.3 Proposed Development

JTC understands that the proposed development involves the construction of a residential
structure at the northwestern portion of the site.

3.0 GEOTECHNICAL EXPLORATIONS

JTC observed the excavation of five (5) geotechnical test pits on December 21,, 2023. The
approximate locations of the subsurface explorations are shown in the attached Exploration
Location Plon.

3.1 Test Pits

JTC observed the excavation of five (5) geotechnical test pits, designated TP-l through TP-5, to
depths of approximately 6.5 to 8.5 feet bgs (below ground surface) via an excavator. JTC directed
the excavation, testing, and sampling activities and logged the subsurface conditions
encountered at each test pit location.

The test pit locations were selected by the client and altered under the constraints of excavator
access and utility / subsurface conflicts. The relative location of each test pit was established via

measurements from existing site features. The approximate locations of the test pits are shown
on the attached Exploration Location Plan.

The test pits were backfilled with spoils upon completion of excavation. Detailed records of the
excavation, testing, and sampling performed, and the soil, bedrock, and groundwater conditions
observed at each test pit location are provided on the attached Exploration Logs.

4.O GEOTECHNICAL TABORATORYTESTING

JTC selected representative soil samples for geotechnical laboratory testing. The following tests
were performed:

. Two (2) washed sieve analyses and moisture content determinations

Geotechnical laboratory testing was performed in general accordance with ASTM procedures.

Test results are provided in the attached Geotechnical Laboratory Testing Reports appendix.

5.0 SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS

The following subsections describe the site stratigraphy and groundwater conditions
encountered, based on results of the geotechnical explorations and laboratory testing. Detailed
descriptions of the conditions observed at each test pit are provided in the attached Exploration
Logs.

www.consultjtc.com



J
-

Geotechnical I nvestigation Report
Proposed Residential Structure

60 Dutton Hill Road

Norwich, Vermont
Page 5 of 12

5.1 Soil Profile

The primary so¡l strata are briefly described in the paragraphs below

5.1.1 Topsoil

Approximately 4 to l-O-inches of surficial Topsoil was encountered throughout the site. The

Topsoil generally consists of brown well-graded Sand (SW) with Organics and Silt, and trace
amounts of Gravel.

5.L.2 Subsoil

Approximat ely L.2 to 3.3 feet of soils interpreted to be Subsoil were encountered underlying the
Topsoil. The Subsoil generally consists of brown Sandy Silt (ML) with Organics and trace amounts
of Boulders and Cobbles.

5.1.3 Native Sand

Soils interpreted to be Native Sand were encountered underlying the Subsoil to depths of
approximately 2.0 to 4.0 feet bgs. The Native Silt generally consists of gray well-graded Sand (SW)

with Silt and Gravel.

5.L.4 GlacialTill

Soils interpreted to be Glacial Till were encountered underlying the Native Sand. The GlacialTill
generally consists of gray Silty well-graded Sand (SW) with Gravel and trace amounts of Cobbles.

5.2 Refusal

Practical refusal to further penetration of the excavator was encountered at TP-1. Refusals are

not necessarily indicative of encountering competent bedrock. The approximate refusal

conditions are tabulated below.

5.3 Groundwater

Groundwater was encountered in TP-2 and TP-3 during the site investigation; groundwater was

not observed in TP-l-, TP-4, and TP-5.

JTC estimates that this investigation occurred during a period of seasonally normal groundwater

Table 1- Refusal Conditions

Exploration # Refusal Type Depth
(feet)

Elevation (feet) Estimated Refusal Material

TP-1 Excavator Refusal 6.5 733.5 Competent Bedrock / Boulders

www.consultjtc.com



J
Geotechnical lnvestigation Report

Proposed Residential Structure
60 Dutton Hill Road

Norwich, Vermont
Page 6 of 12

The proposed building should be located no closer than 15 feet from the crest of the
slope;

Stormwater discharge can cause eros¡on of the slope. Concentrated discharges tend to
have greater erosion potential due to the volume and velocity of the discharge. Therefore,
site grading and drainage should be designed to promote stormwater sheet flow runoff,
rather than concentrated flows;

Efforts should be made to establish and/or maintain the vegetative and tree growth on

the slope surface, as they provide surficial strength and protection against erosion;

Where concentrated discharges are necessary, for instance at roof gutter downspouts,
measures should be implemented to disperse the discharge. Alternately, adequate
protection measures should be installed to protect the soil against erosion;

The owner should perform periodic, regular inspections of the slope to identify signs of
instability. Establishing reference stakes along the slope can aid in long term monitoring
of slope movement. ln addition, leaning or falling trees can be an indicator of slope

movement. Areas of erosion, sloughing, or sliding should be repaired as soon as practical,

as unstable areas left unrepaired will be more susceptible to furtherdisturbance;

Existing slope failures will be susceptible to further disturbance. ln order to limit the
potential for these historic failures to grow, efforts should be made to re-stablish the
vegetative growth and stabilize the slides,

Site groundwater levels should be expected to fluctuate seasonally and in response to
precipitation events, construction activity, site use, and adjacent site use. Groundwater
encountered during the explorations is most likely perched above the relatively low permeability
Native Sand and/or Glacial Till soils. The approximate depths to groundwater level are tabulated
below in Table 2.

6.0 GEOTECHNICAL ANALYSIS & RECOMMENDATIONS

The evaluation of the site and the proposed development was based on the subsurface
conditions encountered at the exploration locations, results of geotechnical laboratory testing,
and provided site plans/grading, as described herein.

6.1 Slope Considerations

The presence and past failures of the slope will have a significant impact on the siting and design

of the proposed building. JTC suggests the following recommendations be followed:

a

a

a

a

Table 2 - Groundwater Conditions
Test Pit Groundwater Depth (feet bes) Grou ndwater Elevatlon {feet}

TP-2 3.0 726.0

TP-3 1.0 725.0

a

www.consultjtc.com



J
J

Geotechnical lnvestigation Report
Proposed Residential Structure

60 Dutton llill Rosd
Norwich, Vermont

PageT of 12

6.2 Foundations

Based on the subsurface conditions encountered at the exploration locations and our current
understanding and assumptions relative to the proposed development, the following foundation
design recommendat¡ons are provided:

The building can be supported on a system of continuous and/or isolated shallow spread
footings bearing on nat¡ve Glacial Till and/or Structural Fill built-up from properly
prepared existing native soil subgrades;

Shallow foundations may be designed using an allowable bearing pressure of 4,000 psf.

Design bearing pressures may be increased by one-third (%) when considering seismic
and or transient wind loading conditions;

Continuous wall footings should have a minimum width of 2 feet. lsolated column

footings should have a minimum width of 3 feet;

Exterior footings should be founded at least 5 feet below the lowest adjacent grade to
provide adequate frost protection. lnterior footings in heated portions of the building
should be founded at least 2 feet below FFE to develop adequate bearing capacity;

Total post-construction settlements due to applied foundation loads are estimated to be

less than 1- inch. Differential settlements between isolated footings are estimated to be

on the order of % of total settlement. The estimated settlements and resulting angular
distortion are anticipated to be within the allowable limits for this type of structure;

lf the proposed building design includes an underground (or partially underground)
basement, we recommend that a foundation drain system be installed around the
perimeter of the building at the exterior toe of the exterior footings to remove potentially
perched run off at the proposed footing/native soil interface. Foundation drains should

consist of 4-inch diameter PVC-SDR35 perforated pipe encased in at least 6 inches of %-

inch stone protected with a filterfabric such as Mirafi l-40N orequal. The drains should

be graded to positively drain to a suitable discharge point away from the proposed

structure. Drains should not be connected to surface or roof drain discharge points. Clean-

outs should be located at bends and no greater than L50 feet on-center. lt is

recommended that a backflow preventer be installed at the outlet of the drains to reduce

the impact of potential surcharges;

Recommendations for shallow foundation subgrade preparation and construction are provided
as follows:

A geotechnical engineer or his/her representative should directly observe foundation
subgrade prepa ration activities;

lf shallow and/or perched groundwater is encountered, it must be removed in advance

of excavation and continuously maintained at least 2 feet below the bottom of excavation
and subsequent construction grade until the backfilling is complete;

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

www.consultjtc.com



J
J

Geotechnical lnvestigation Report
Proposed Residential Structure

60 Dutton Hill Road

Norwich, Vermont
Page 8 of 12

a

Native soil subgrades should be proof-compacted with multiple passes of a heavy

compaction equipment in the presence of the Geotechnical Engineer;

The native foundation subgrade soils will be sensitive to moisture and may disturb or
soften if exposed to wet conditions and construction activities, Therefore, if wet
conditions are present or anticipated due to groundwater seepage, perched

groundwater, andf or precipitation/stormwater, the foundation subgrade should be

protected with a 6-inch (minimum) thick layer of %-inch minus Crushed Stone encased in

a geotextile fabric. The fabric and Crushed Stone should be placed immediately upon

exposure of the native foundation subgrade soils and densified with a plate compactor
until exhibiting stable conditions. The purpose of the Crushed Stone is to protect the
subgrade soils from disturbance, facilitate construction dewatering (if necessary), and

provide a dry/stable subgrade upon which to progress construction;

o lf undocumented Fill, Clay, loose fine-grained soils, and/or otherwise unsuitable
soils/materials are encountered at the foundation subgrade, over-excavations

should remove all unsuitable soils within the footing zone of influence; and

o Any over-excavations should be backfilled with properly placed and compacted
Structurol Fill or Crushed Stone, within the footing zone of influence described

above, as approved by the on-site geotechnical engineer.

Prior to setting forms and placing reinforcing steel, a geotechnical engineer should

directly observe footing subgrades;

o Footing subgrades should be level or suitably benched and free of standing water
and/or debris;

o Loose, soft, wet, frozen, or otherwise unsuitable soils should either be re-

compacted or over-excavated to a suitable subgrade, as approved by the on-site
geotechnical engineer; and

o Over-excavations should be backfilled with properly placed and compacted

Structural Fill or crushed stone as approved by the on-site geotechnical engineer.

Foundation subgrade soils should be protected against physical disturbance,
precipitation, andf or frost throughout construction. Surface water run-on/run-off should

be diverted away from open foundation excavations. The Contractor shall ultimately be

responsible for the means and methods to protect the foundation subgrade during
construction;

lnterior footings, piers, and/or walls and the interior side of balanced perimeter

foundation walls should be backfilled with Structurol Fill, as described in the attached
Tobles;

Exterior footings and the exterior side of balanced perimeter foundation walls should be

backfilled with non-frost-susceptible fill in order to mitigate potential adverse effects of
frost. Exterior footing and foundation wall backfill should consist of well-graded, free-
draining, granular soil conforming to the requirements of Clean Granular Fil/, as described

a

a

a

www.consultjtc.com



J
J

in the attached Tobles;

Backfillforfootings and foundation walls should be placed in uniform horizontallifts having

a maximum loose lift thickness of 8 inches and compacted to 95 percent of its modified
proctor maximum dry density (MPMDD; per ASTM D1557). Thinner lifts may be required in

order to achieve the required compaction criteria; and

To minimize the potential for foundation wall damage during the backfill and compaction

activities, it is recommended that foundation wall backfill be placed in a manner that
maintains a balanced fill height on both sides of the wall.

6.3 Slab-On-Grade

Based on the results of the explorations, JTC believes the slab can be supported on the Native

Sand, Glacial Till and/or StructurolFil/ built up from native soils, Existing Fill, Topsoil, and Subsoil

should be removed from within the building footprint. Design recommendations for the floor
slab-on-grade are provided as follows:

Slabs-on-grade should be underlain by a minimum 1"2-inch thick layer of 1-inch minus

Clean Gronulør Fillplaced over previously placed StructurolFil/ to provide a capillary break

and a stable working surface;

A modulus of vertical subgrade reaction, kui, of 125 pounds per cubic inch (pci)should be

available for structu ral design of the floor slabs-on-grade, provided that the subgrade soils

and Structurol Fillare prepared as recommended in the previous Subsections;

The floor slab should be isolated structurally from foundation walls and columns/piers to
allow for differential movement; and

The requirement for a moisture/vapor barrier beneath floor slab-on-grade should be

evaluated by the architect and/or the structural engineer, based on the building's specific

interior usage requirements.

Additional recommendations for slab-on-grade subgrade preparation and construction are
provided as follows:

r A geotechnical engineer should directly observe the subgrade soils prior to the placement

of the recommended fill within the slab area;

. The subgrade should be level and free of standing water and/or debris;

. Loosê, soft, wet, frozen, or otherwise unsuitable soils should either be re-compacted or
over-excavated to a suitable subgrade, as approved by the on-site geotechnical engineer;

and

. Over-excavations should be backfilled with properly placed and compacted StructurolFill.

Geotechnical lnvestigation Report
Proposed Residential Structure

60 Dutton llill Road

Norw¡ch, Vermont
Page 9 of L2

a

a

a

a

a

www.consultjtc.com



J
J

Geotechnical lnvestigation Report
Proposed Residential Structure

60 Dutton Hill Road

Norwich, Vermont
Page 10 of 12

6.4 Re-Use of Site Soils

The excavated materials encountered at the site are not expected to be suitable for re-use as

Structural Fill or Cleon Gronulor Fill due to high fines. Native Sand soils may be re-used as

Common Fill or in areas to be landscaped, if they can be adequately compacted and subject to
conformance with the project specifications.

6.5 Construction Mon¡toring and Quality ControlTesting

A qualified geotechnical engineer or representative should be retained to review the site
preparation and grading activities and foundation subgrade preparations, at a minimum,
Similarly, quality control testing, including in-place field density and moisture tests, should be

performed to confirm that the specified compaction is achieved. lt is recommended that JTC be

retained to provide earthwork construction monitoring and quality control testing services.

Quality control testing recommendations are provided as follows

During site grading and foundation subgrade preparation, 3 field density tests should be

performed for every 5,000 square feet (per lift) of Structural Fillplacement, at a minimum.
At least 3 tests should be performed on each lift of material even if the lift is less than
5,000 square feet;

During foundation wall backfilling, 3 field density tests should be performed for every 100

linear feet (per lift) of fill placement, at a minimum, At least 3 tests should be performed
on each lift of material even if the lift is less than L00 linear feet;

During placement and compaction of Clean Gronular Fillas the base course below the
floor slab-on-grade and sidewalks,3 field density tests should be performed for every

5,000 square feet of placement. At least 3 tests should be performed on each lift of
material even if the lift is less than 5,000 square feet;

During backfilling of utility trenches, at least l test should be conducted on Structurol Fill
per 50 linear feet (per lift) of trench; and

During site grading and pavement subgrade preparation, 3 field density tests should be

performed for every 5,000 square feet (per lift) of Common Fill, at a minimum. At least 3

tests should be performed on each lift even if the lift is less than 5,000 square feet.

6.6 AdditionalConsiderations

Additional design recommendations are provided as follows:

Exterior concrete sidewalks should be underlain by at least 12 inches of Clean Granulor
Fill. The thickness of the Cleon Granular Fillshould be increased to no less than l-8 inches

for exterior concrete slabs located adjacent to exterior doorways and ramps to provide

additional frost protection at building entry/exit points;

a

a

a

a

a

a

www.consultjtc.com



J
-

Geotechnical lnvestigation Report
Proposed Residential Structure

60 Dutton Hill Road
Norwich, Vermont

Page tL o1 12

Roof drains or similar features should be provided to collect roof run-off and prevent
ponding near the building. Roof drains and other stormwater controls should not
discharge to foundation drains; and

The exterior ground surface adjacent to the building should be sloped away from the
building to provide for positive drainage. Similarly, the final surface materials adjacent to
the building should be relatively impermeable to reduce the volume of precipitation
infiltrating into the subsurface proximate to building foundations. Such impermeable
materials include cement concrete, bituminous concrete, and/or vegetated silty/clayey
topsoil.

a

a

a

Additional construction considerations/recommendations are provided as follows

Safe temporary excavation and/or fill slopes are the responsibility of the Contractor.
Excavations should be conducted in accordance with local, state, and federal (OSHA)

requirements, at a minimum. lf an excavation cannot be properly sloped or benched due
to space limitations, adjacent structures, and/or seepage, the Contractor should install an

engineered shoring system to support the temporary excavation;

Subgrade conditions will be influenced by excavation methods, precipitation, stormwater
management, groundwater control(s), and/or construction activities. Most of the site
soils are poorly-drained, moisture-sensitive, and considered susceptible to disturbance
when exposed to wet conditions and construction activities. As such, the Contractor
should be aware of these conditions and must take precautions to minimize subgrade
disturbance. Such precautions may include diverting storm run-off away from
construction areas, reducing traffic in sensitive areas, minimizing the extent of exposed
subgrade if inclement weather is forecast, backfilling excavations as soon as practicable,

and maintaining an effective dewatering program, as necessary;

Proper groundwater control and stormwater management are necessary to maintain site
stability. Groundwater should be removed in advance and continuously maintained at
Ieast 2 feet below the working construction grade until earthworks and/or backfilling are

complete;

lf groundwater seepage and/or wet soils due to shallow groundwater are observed, a %-

inch minus crushed stone base should be placed atop the exposed subgrade soils. The

stone should be immediately placed atop the undisturbed subgrade and then tamped
with a plate compactor untilexhibiting stable condltions. The stone should be protected,
as required, with a geotextile filter fabric such as Mirafi 140N or equal. The purpose of
the stone base is to protect the wet subgrade, facilitate dewatering, and provide a

dry/stable base upon which to progress construction; and

All slopes should be protected from erosion during (and after)construction.

a

a

a

a

www.consultjtc.com



J
-

Geotechnical lnvestigation Report
Proposed Residential Structure

60 Dutton Hlll Road
Norwich, Vermont

PaEe t2 oÍ L2

7.O CLOSTNG

We trust the contents of this report are responsive to your needs at this time. Should you have

any questions or require add¡tional assistance, please do not hesitate to contact our office.

www.consultjtc.com



J
-
JOHN TURNER

CONSULTING

APPENDIX A: LIMITATIONS

Explorations

1". The analyses and recommendations presented in this report are based in part upon the data obtained
from widely-spaced subsurface explorations, Subsurface conditions between exploration locations

may vary from those encountered at the exploration locations. The nature and extent of variations
between explorations may not become evident until construction. lf variations appear, it will be

necessary to re-evaluate the recommendations of this report.

2. The generalized soil profile described in the text is intended to convey trends in subsurface conditions.
The boundaries between strata are approximate and idealized and have been developed by

interpretation of widely-spaced explorations and samples; actualstrata transitions are probably more
gradual. For specific information, refer to the individual test pit and/or boring logs.

3. Water level readings have been made in the test pits and/or borings under conditions stated on the
logs. These data have been reviewed and interpretations have been made in the text of this report.
However, it must be noted that fluctuations in the level of the groundwater may occur due to
variations in rainfall, temperature, and other factors differing from the time the measurements were
made.

Review

4. lt is recommended thatJohn Turner Consulting, lnc. be given the opportunity to review final design

drawings and specifications to evaluate the appropriate implementation of the geotechnical

engineering recommendations provided herein.

5. ln the event that any changes in the nature, design, or location of the proposed areas are planned,

the conclusions and recommendations contained in this report shall not be considered valid unless

the changes are reviewed, and conclusions of the report modified or verified in writing by John Turner
Consulting, lnc.

Construction

6. lt is recommended that John Turner Consulting, lnc. be retained to provide geotechnical engineering
services during the installation phases of the work. This is to observe compliance with the design

concepts, specifications, and recommendations and to allow design changes in the event that
subsurface conditions differ from those anticipated prior to the start of construction.

Use of Report

7. This report has been prepared for the exclusive use of the addressee for the referenced project. All
considerations are based on the available information and is in accordance with generally accepted

soil and foundation engineering practices. No otherwarranty, expressed or implied, is made.

This report has been prepared for this project by John Turner Consulting, lnc. This report was

completed for preliminary design purposes and may be limited in its scope to complete an accurate
bid. Contractors wishing a copy of the report may secure it with the understanding that its scope is
lirniLed to prelirrrirrary geuLechrrical tJesigrr cunsideration.

www.consultjtc.com



J
-
JOHN TURNER

CONSULTING

APPENDIX B: RECOMMENDED SOIL GRADATION & COMPACTION SPECIFICATIONS

TABLE 1: Structural Fill

SIEVE SIZE
PERCENT PASSING

BY WEIGHT

5-inch L00

%-inch 60 - L00

No.4 20-80

No. 200 0-10

NOTES:
7. For use as structural load support below foundations and within the building pad. Structural Fill placed

beneath building foundations should include the Footing Zone of lnfluence which is defined as that area

extending laterally one foot from the edge of the footing then outward and downward at a 1,:L.5 (H:V) splay.

%-inch crushed stone may be used in wet conditions.
Structural Fill should be free of construction and demolition debris, frozen soil, organic soil, peat, stumps,
brush, trash, and refuse;
Structural Fill should not be placed on soft, saturated, or frozen subgrade soils;

Structural Fill should be placed in lifts not exceeding 12 inches for heavy vibratory rollers and 8 inches for
vibratory plate compactors.
Place and compact within t 3% of optimum moisture content.
Compact to at least 95% relative compaction per ASTM D1557.

The adequacy of the compaction efforts should be verified by field density testing.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

www.consultjtc.com



J
f

JOHN TURNER
CONSULTING

TABLE 2: Clean Granular Fill

SIEVE SIZE
PERCENT PASSING

BY WEIGHT

3-inch L00

%-inch 60-90

No.4 20-70

No. 200 2-B

NOTES

7. Should consist of crushed stone beneath the concrete pad, as approved by on-site geotechnical engineer.
2. For minimum 9-inch base below the floor slab-on-grade.
3. For minimum 12-inch base for exterior concrete slabs exposed to frost.
4. For minimum 18-inch base at exterior ramps, aprons, and loading bays adjacent to entrances/exit ways.
5. For use as footing and foundation wall backfill.
6. For use as backfill behind unbalanced foundation/retaining walls.
7. Place in lifts not exceeding L2 inches for heavy vibratory rollers and 8 inches for vibratory plate compactors.
8. Place and compact within t 3% of optimum moisture content.
9. Compact to at least 95% relative compaction per ASTM D1557.
10. Compact to at least 95% relative compaction per ASTM D1-557 when placed as foundation wall backfill in

conjunction with a bond break.
11. The adequacy of the compaction efforts should be verified by field density testing.

TABLE 3: Common Fill

SIEVE SIZE
PERCENT PASSING

BY WEIGHT

6-inch 100

%-inch 60 - 100

No.4 20-85

No. 200 o -25
NOTES:

1. For use as common/subgrade fill in parking areas and roadway embankments.
2. For use as foundation wall backfill if used in conjunction with a bond break and sized/screened to 3-inch

minus.

3. Place in lifts not exceeding L2 inches.
4. Maximum stone size should not exceed % the actual lift thickness.
5. Compact to at least 92% relative compaction per ASTM D1557 when placed as subgrade fill in parking areas

or roadway embankments.
6. Compact to at least 95% relative compaction per ASTM D1557 when placed as foundation wall backfill in

conjunction with a bond break.
7. The adequacy of the compaction efforts should be verified by field density testing.

www.consultjtc.com



J
-
JOHN TURNER

CONSULTING

APPENDIX C: RECOMMENDED DESIGN PARAMETERS FOR UNBALANCED WALLS

The following table outlines the recommended lateral earth pressure coefficients for the
design of basement retaining walls:

WallCondition Lateral Movement
(A/H)

Earth Pressure

Coefficient (K)

Equivalent Fluid

Density (K*7)

Cantilever - Unrestrained
Active Earth Pressure

NA NA NA

Braced - Restrained -

Bedrock <H ft behind wall
At Rest Earth Pressure

<0.002 Ko = 0.50 60 pcf

Passive - Unrestrained >0.02 Kp = 3.0 360 pcf

1. Hydrostatic pressures are not included;
2. A level backfill in front of and behind the wall;
3. Use of only small plate com pactors with in 3 feet horizonta lly of the top of wa ll

a

where:A = movement at top of wall by rotation or lateral translation
H = height of wall

T = soil unit weight - I2O pcf - assumes compacted Common or Structural Fill

Retaining walls should be designed to accommodate any possible surcharge loads, such

as vehicle traffic, snow storage, pedestrian traffic, maintenance considerations, etc. A
minimum surcharge load of 250 psf should be used to account for vehicle traffic,
Surcharges should be analyzed as the vertical surcharge pressure multiplied by the
appropriate earth pressure coefficient. Surcharge loads should be considered where they
are located within a horizontal distance equivalent to 1- times the height of the wall.

To account for possible soil softening due to saturation and freeze thaw action, we

recommend passive pressure be ignored in the upper two feet below finished grade.

Minimum Factors of Safety when calculating overturning moments and sliding should be

2.0 and 1-.5, respectively.

A drainage system should be installed behind the wall to prevent the buildup of
hydrostatic pressure. The drainage system should consist of the following:

- Chimney Drain - Minimum 12-inch-wide column of Crushed Stone protected with a

geotextile separation fabric placed directly behind the wall for its full exposed height.

- Collector Drain - Minimum 4-inch diameter perforated PVC pipe encased in at least 6
inches of %-inch stone protected with a geotextile separation fabric. lnstalled at the
base of the stone chimney drain. Drains should be designed to discharge into the
stormwater collection system or other suitably designed discharge points that provide
for drainage away from the structures. For basement walls, the drains should be at
least l-2 inches below the underside of the adjacent floor slab.

- Grading should be completed to direct stormwater runoff away from retaining walls.

a

a

a

www.consultjtc.com



J
J

JOHN TURNER
CONSULTING

Drainage systems from neighboring structures and other improvements should not
direct water toward retaining walls.

- The final surface materials adjacent to the wall should be relatively impermeable to
reduce the volume of precipitation infiltrating behind the wall. Such impermeable
materials include Portland cement concrete, bituminous concrete, and/or vegetated
silty/clayey topsoil.

Backfill behind the chimney drain should consist of compacted engineered fill.

lf the retaining wall is not designed to drain water, then the lateral earth pressure should

be increased to include full hydrostatic pressures.

The following interface friction factors are recommended for evaluating sliding resistance

Condition Friction Factor

a

a

Concrete cast directly on soil, crushed stone, or bedrock
Precast concrete placed on soil, crushed stone, or bedrock

0.s0
0.40

www.consultjtc.com



J
J

JOHN TURNER
CONSULTING

APPENDIX D: EXPLORATION LOCATION PLAN

www.consultjtc.com



l--o
I+

O

Ø

o
!
õ
L

E
.O
c

E
O
o
oo
O

I

+
O

o
ô_

Ø
o
L

o
È

DUWNG #:
1t23t24
23-Õ4-1ú

ôê
5L

DESiêN:

REVIEW:

TXPLORATION LOCATION PLAN
PR,OJECf: 60 DUTTON HILL ROAD

NORWCFl. VERMONT

GREG HYNESCLIENT:J
J

JOIII{ TURÌIEß
co['sutft r6

Note5;

I. TÊ5f P]Ts DESIGNATED ÎP. I ÍhROUGI.J TF-s WERE EXCAVAÍED ON DECEMtsER 2I . 2O?3 UNDERTI-IE
DIRECÎION OF JTC,

2.EXPLORATIONS WERE LOCATED IN TI-1E FIELD UgING TAPED MEASUR.EMENTg RELAÍIVE fO PROI\,4INENT
EXIgTING SIÍE FEATURE9 AND giiOUtD BE CONgIDERED APPROX{I\,4ATE.

3.tsA5EN,4AP SOURCE: ''EXISTING CONDITIONS" DAÍED JULY 6, 2023. PREPARED ÐY PATIìWAYs
CONgULTING. LLC OF LEBANON. NI1.

LTGEND

# APPROXIMATE LOCATICN AND
DESIGNATION OF TEST PITS
EXCAVATED ON DECEMBER 21, 2023

l+. APPROXIMATE I5FT
cRrST OrrSET

#---

,.*, APPROXIMATE
CREST OT SLOPE

_ :**---
". - 

- 
a-_

'.-.'--'^.\.

SCALE

0 60' 120'



J
J

JOHN TURNER
CONSULTING

APPENDIX E: TEST PIT LOGS & KEY TO SYMBOLS AND DESCRIPTION

www.consultjtc.com



PROJECT

LOCATION

Vermont

DEPTH TO - Water: When checked

J
Hill 2 -04-107

60 Dutton Hill Road N

DATE

PROJECT NO

EXCAVATION METHOD
740 feet

LOGGER

t212U2023
ELEV

J
J0l{il TURITIER

c0t'tsulftt¡G

TEST PIT LOG
Test Pit No.: TP-l

SOIL SYMBOLS
AND SAMPLERSELEVATION/

DEPTH GRAPHIC
Y
J

=o
USCS

DESCRIPTION

SW
ML

IsuBSorl-]
Brown Sandy Silt (ML) with Gravel, with Organics, trace Boulders, trace

INATIVE SAND]
Gray well-graded Sand (SW) with Silt, with Gravel

with Si trace Gravel
ITOPSOILI - 6 inches

withSandBrown

bblesSW

.SW

740

730 l0

l5

715

0

735 5

725

720 20

25

IGLACIAL TILL]
Gray Silty well-graded Sand (SW) with Gravel, trace Cobbles
Refusal at 6.5 feet

Notes

John Turner Consulting



PROJECT

60 Dutton Hill Ro Vermont
CLIENT

LOCATION ELEV

Vermont

Excavator

J
N

N

ielmo

PROJECT NO

730 feet
R

23-04-107
DATE

60 Dutton Hill
D

Bobcat E50

-
JOHN TURT{ER

c0t{suITtNG

TEST PIT LOG
Test Pit No. i TP-z

DEPTH TO - Water: 3 feet When checked

SOIL SYMBOLS
AND SAMPLERSELEVATION/

DEPTH GRAPHIC
\¿
J
f
@

USCS
DESCRIPTION

SW

ML

SW

IsuBSorL]
Brown Sandy Silt (ML) with Gravel, with Organics, trace Boulders, trace

INATIVE SAND]
Gray well-graded Sand (SW) with Silt, with Gravel
-with Boulders

Sand S with with trace Gravel
ITOPSOIL] - 8 inches

Brown well-

l0

715 l5

710

730 0

725 5

720

20

705 25

SW
trace CobbleswithSi well-

IGLACIAL TILL]

Test pit terminated at 8.5 feet

Sand

Notes:

John Turner Consulting



PROJECT

60 Dutton Hill Norwi
CLIENT

LOCATION

Vermont

DEPTH TO - Water: When checked

,

ermont

Gre H

PROJECT NO

-04-1

ELEV

60 Dutton Hill
EXCAVATION METHOD

726 feet
LOGGER

ú
JOHN TURITIER

c0t'tsurTrt'¡G

TEST PIT LOG
Test Pit No.: TP-3

DATE

r2t2112023

SOIL SYMBOLS
AND SAMPLERSELEVATION/

DEPTH GRAPHIC
Y
J

=co
USCS

DESCRIPTION

SW

ML

SW

INATIVE SAND]
Gray well-graded Sand (SW) with Silt, with Gravel

721

716 10

711 15

701

726 0

5

706 20

25

SW
with Gravel trace CobblesSi well

IGLACIAL TILL]

Test pit terminated at 8.0 feet

Sand

Notes

John Turner Consulting



PROJECT NO

60 Dutton Hill
CLIENT

LOCATION

60 Dutton Hill Vermont

Excavator

J
PROJECT

Norwi

N

ELEV

725 feet
LOGGER

Bobcat 850

-
JOH¡I TURTIER

c0l'¡suLlli¡6

TEST PIT LOG
Test Pit No.: TP-4

DATE

1212112023

DEPTH TO - Water: N/E When checked

SOIL SYMBOLS
AND SAMPLERS

GRAPHIC
!¿J
ó

USCS
DESCRIPTION

ELEVATION/

DEPTH

SW

ML
lsuBSorl,l
Brown Sandy Silt (ML) with Gravel, with Organics, trace Boulders, trace
Cobbles

with trace Gravel
ITOPSOIL] - 8 inches

Brown well- Sand with

SW INATIVE SAND]
Gray well-graded Sand (SW) with Silt, with Gravel

SW

715 l0

710 l5

725 0

720 5

705 20

700 25

trace CobblesS with
IGLACIAL TILL]

Test pit terminated at 8.5 feet

Sand

Notes

John Turner Consulting



JOHl{ TURiIER
c0l{sur.ït¡rG

PROJECT

Vermont
CLIENT

LOCATION

Vermont
LOGGER

DEPTH TO - Water: N

J

J

Bo

60 Dutton Hill Road N

PROJECT NO

When checked
tE5

23-04-107
DATE

1212U2023
ELEV

EXCAVATION METHOD

TEST PIT LOG
Test Pit No.: TP-s

SOIL SYMBOLS
AND SAMPLERSELEVATION/

DEPTH GRAPHIC
)¿
J

=m
USCS

DESCRIPTION

SW

ML

SW

INATIVE SAND]
Gray well-graded Sand (SW) with Silt, with Gravel

SW

t¿5

718 10

tt3 15

708

0728

5

20

703 25

with Gravel trace CobblesSi well-
IGLACIAL TILL]

Test pit terminated at 8.0 feet
Sand

Notes:

John Turner Consulting



L-I ¡onr Tu¡rrr
J (¡rrrl--.¡E

KEY TO SYMBOLS AND DESCRIPTIOT{S
li-lRecessed Cover
I -l'set in concrete
i - :jTop of wett,

i' :jRecessed Pipe

ff Covered Riser

T= Caôoed Riser ø
I ìl ¡66¡¡¡9 g6ys¡

I

I Pipe Riser
I

fJconcrete seat

--¿
!. ..iGravet eacritt

: Assorted
Cuttings

Slurry

Benton¡te Pellets

Sand,
PVC

Slotted Pipe M
Sand

on P¡pe

Packed ¡n Sand

Silica Sand, No
P¡De lEnd Pluo)

WELL
SYMROT,S

fr

V

Shelby Tube

T
v

I

Auger Cuttings

Standard Split
Spoon Sample

Rock Core

3" Split Spoon
Sample

Dynamic Cone
Penetrometer

Vane Shear Bulk/Grab Sample

Geoprobe Sample

Water Table
(at time of drilling)

Sonic or
Vibro-Core Sample

Y Water Table
(after 24 hours)

TYPICAL SYMBOLS
SOIL MOISTURE MODIFIRRS

Descript¡on

Absence of moisture; dusty, dry to touch

Damp but no visible water

Visible free water

The descriptor "damp" should nol be used (use "moist").
The descriptor "saturated" should not be used (use "wet")

Term

Dry

Moist

Wet

ryPICAL NAMES
Well-graded gravels or gravel-sand mixtures, little or no
fines

Poorly graded gravels or gravel-sand mifures, little or no
fines

Silty gravels, gravel-sand mixtures

Clayey gravels, gravel-sand-clay mixtures

Well-graded sand or gravelly sands, little or no fines

Poorly graded sands or gravelly sands, Iittle or no fines

Silty sand, sand-silt mixtures

Clayey sands, sand-clay mixtures

lnorganic silts and very fine sands, rock flour, silty or
clayey fine sands or clayey silts with slight plasticity

lnorganic clays of low to medium plasticity, gravelly clays,
sandy clays, silty clays, lean clays

Organic silts and organic silty clays of low plasticity

lnorganic silts, micaceous or diatomaceous fine sandy or
silty soils, elastic silts

lnorganic clays of high plasticity, fat clays

Organic clays of medium to high plasticity, organic silty
clays, organic sìlts

Peat and other highly organic soils

SYMBOLS

)

o Ò
\J
c-
)\

\! ¡/ \¡ ,/

5",o

GW

GP

GM

GC

SW

SC

ML

CL

OL

MH

CH

OH

PT

MAJOR DIVISIONS

CLEAN
GRAVELS WITH
LESS THAN 5%

FINES

GRAVELS WITH
OVER 15%

FINES

CLEAN SANDS
WITH LESS

THAN 5% FINES

SANDS WITH
OVER 15%

FINES

SILTS & CLAYS

LIQUID LIMIT 50% OR LESS

SILTS & CLAYS

LIQUID LIMIT GREATER THAN 50%

HIGHLY ORGANIC SOILS

GRAVELS

MORE THAN 1/2
OF COARSE

FRACï|ON > No.4
SIEVE SIZË

SANDS

MORE THAN 1/2
OF COARSE

FRACTION < No.4
SIEVE SIZE

I.JJ

N
Ø cr)
J

õ9Øu
Ò6tu^
¿-Õ
;_N\rlÕ
o¿_
úØ̂*
t--o
<ro
Ooa
O I]J

o
uJ
N
ct)

U) rt
J;
o r1r
Ø CJ)

Oo
9R
-O32.
Sv
ul ä*
<16
LLÉ

ul

PERCENT OR PORTIObTS OF SOIL
Description

> 1/16 in

0.5 in. to 1/16 in

12 in" to 0.5 in.

> 12in

Small erratic deposit

Lenticular deposit

One or less per foot of thickness

More than one per foot of thickness

Alternating seams or layers of silt and/or clay
and sometimes f. sand

Term

Parting:

Seam:

Layer:

Stratum:

Pocket:

Lens:

Occasional:

Frequent

Varved

RELATIVE DENSITY/CONSI S TENCY
Silt (plastic) and Clay

Consistency

Very Soft

Soft

Medium Stiff

sr¡ff

Very Stiff

Hard

Standard Penetration Testing (SPT) N6s based on blows per 12
inches.
WR = Weight of Rods; WH = We¡ght of Hammer

Su

0-250

251 - 500

501 - 1000

1001 - 2000

2001 - 4000

4001 +

N-Value

0-2
3-4
Ã_e

9-15
16-30
31 +

Gravel, Sand, and Silt
lnônnlâsliê\

Relat¡ve Density

Very Loose

Loose

Medium Dense

Dense

Very Dense

N-Value

0-4
5-10
1'1-30

31-50
51 +

MNGE OF GRAIN SIZES

Grain Size
in MillimeJers

Above 305

305 to 76.2

76.2to 4.75
76.2to 19.1
19.1 to 4.75

4.75 to 0.075
4.75 to 2.00
2.00 to 0.425
0.425 to 0.075

Below 0.075

U.S. Standard
Sier¡a Sizo

Above 12"

'12" to 3"

3" to No. 4
3" to 3/4"
3/4" to No. 4

No. 4 to No. 200
No.4 to No. 10
No. l0 to No. 40
No. 40 to No. 200

Below No. 200

CLASSIFICATION

BOULDERS

COBBLES

GRAVEL
coarse
fine

SAND
coarse
medium
fine

SILT & CLAY

REFERENCE: LINIFIED SOIL CLASSIFICATION SYSTEM - ASTM D2488-93



J
-
JOHN TURNER

CONSULTING

APPENDIX F: GEOTECHNICAL LABORATORY TESTING REPORTS

www.consultjtc.com



T
q)
-¡+
õ'
o
U,
No
cl
Ø
Ê{.

--,cr
F
É
o

noE
o
-r+

6 in.

3 ¡n.

2 ¡n.

1li in.

1 in.

Yoin.

Y" in.

3/8 in.

#4

#'10

#30

#40

#60

#1 00

#1 40

#200

PERCENT FINER

rNaÀqo!@@Ë
ooooooooooo

O
o

on
z
,J)

ñ
in

f
3

--v
I

/r-
11

-uv--
_,1__J_

'1- --

s
+
o.:

s
o
Ð
g

àe
C'p

s
fl
f
oa

o
o
Þ
Ø
o

fl
o

o
o
Þ
Ø
o

=o
E'
3

T
o

q

c)il

9o

I

NJ
è

:c
æ

+ô
Ø
¡

t

t-
ooq,*
o

;

U
Â¡

o
U'
q,
3

dg

f.J
NJ

¡.J

U'
È¡

3
I

ó-
z
3
o
t't

I:)5

-ì

o
o

;

-.1o
1¡

7o
l¡

o

(,{
=o
oo
9o

(t
-l
=o

\¡

o
q,E
N3o5.

(q

'ttrto
='ãoo

!ca
oooo

X!¡loï (rt
ogt= .\)

Ëaaèquô6O\{ææ\O\oaælNJo\aæ\o{Þ16
ææaæ¡'.JÀÞU€6OæÈ

O

N)

o
æ

b
O

X

U)
Þ

CA

H
o-
O
p
át<
- lq'

lol-
lÂ,

lo
lo
1tÃ

ìo
Lt
o
f

1tt-
il

(D
t
Èr
o

F{ãll F
'J

U,l^
cn
l+
l<
lo

!là
illr

iæ
'9

c
U'o
U'
g
NÞo{
il

o
d
lu,
L¡

Þl=:
äF
dle
Ê
Èl¡
II

goo
A(JT@oooililil

-luI

oooc û)o
lloolIlll()

oX 9=où iu+

o {;o+ ôPõ.
o "'j

U,

oooo Jo
llor oillt

9
æ

O

I

ô
ô\

g
q)

o
7ooo
o

-æ
NJ

o
Ât

o
-{o
an

o

æ
l..J

-{o
an

o

u,
5
CNr

c)
o
C)-o
ID

o-

Ë

Ð
o

JÊ
!?
t.
Þ

?
p
Þ

oqo

\¡
Ll
o
¿
={

3c
îv
?=
-- nr
ân

Tro
J¿. O
O3

Éoa
=

Åo

o
Þ
Ê-

io

Ì,
a
9.
o
o
zI
p

{

'Tt

õ'
Io

c
N)



!
q)

4
o
o
Ø
No
U
6'
F}

--.C'
-*
o
J

no
õ
o
-.+

6in

3 in.

2 iî.
1Y,iî.

¡n

Yo ìn.

/.in.
3/8 in.

#4

#10

#24

#30

#4A

#60

#1 00

#140

#2AO

PERCENT FINER

rN@Àoo\@@o
oooooooooõo

o
Ð

z
U)
ñ
m

3
3

-- -{/
I

{

a-__--7

--J_

'1- -'

s
+
?

s
o
o
o

s
U)
Þ
o

s
ll
o
Ø

c)
o
Ð
o
@

T
=o

o
o
Þ
ao

=o
E'
3

ll
o

<t
=

c)
Þ

O

!')
le

ô

{
Lh

LJ

Þ

a
a)
Ø
ç
tr

'l1

(nÍ
nroão
=Â)oo
z=

o
'.a

-l
NJ5

c

o
o
o

l

g
q)

o
th
!¡
3

õ-

¡.)
NJ

t¡-

-{oo
7o
Ø

It

Ø
-l
=o
6o
eo

U,-t
3
o
\¡

o
o

G¡

(t
N
o

Trto

='ãoo

Eg
oooo

X![Ð1to
!¡ (n

= .\)

lF*++sF*+ þa5õ=>rì1==58àÈ-
3C-e

AèuO.O\{æææ\O.O\OOq{Naæþ-o:\{-u{o
sæubì:-ieþèoouæb

oy
bÕ
æ:
ob

O

XX

Ð
oa
q)

;oIt(l
a
Ë'
o
f

v)

(,/)
Þ
o-

? ouo c 1t
:. OOO 

^ 
ll

3 ililil ìr5

õp:"õ:cÃxNsî;s
"là lãØl+ooo <

1'3 3 F¿o=ll ll:() !l 'il rd ,,iq ä ,i]:
i È.* È= ¡6ã '"eiå 

E16 ãe_ v= i=Êtõ
ooo l^
1'- B & liQilil ï "lE

þuÀ
l'J

o
Ð
o
7ooo
o

-æ
l..JÀ

o
Ð
o{o
Ø
o

æ
l..JÀ

-{o
.D

o
o.
trÍ
(A

c)
oo
Fo

u¡

o-
Ð

o

IÉo
-Þo'

Ê¡

Þ
oqo

\¡
Ll
o
¿
z
{

ôL
37
7=tltt

ân

-no--9. õ'
ofç,!+

Ë-
=

op

.l
o

T'
a
o
õ'o
z
9

p

Þ

{

ï
a
-o

c



J
APPENDIX G: SITE PHOTOGRAPHS

J

JOHN TURNER
CONSULTING

www.consultjtc.com



j -
JOHN TURNER

CONSULTING

PHOTO LOG
John Turner Gonsulting, lnc Site Location: 60 Dutton Hill Road, Norwich, VT

Photo No.
1

Date:
12t21t2023

Description: Site

Photo No.
2

Date:
12t21t2023

Description: TP-1

Photo No.
3

Date:
12t21t2023

Description: TP-2

Photo No
4

Date:
12t21t2023

Description: TP-2 Spoils Pile

www.consultjtc.com



BRAGG HILL ROAD

SITE LOCATION PLAN

FlvRevisionDote

BOUNDARY PLAN FOR

GREGORY HYNES
DUTTON HILL ROAD & BRAGG HILL ROAD - NORWICH' VERMONT

SEPTEMBER 2+, 2025 SCALE: 1 "= 50'

1501000 50 200 250

PROJ. NO.10,+88-01

PATHWAYS CONSULTING, LLC
240 MECHANIC STRETT, SUITE 1OO

LEBANON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03766
JOSEPH E. Lls 63501

20-68.000

20-68.1 00

TOWN OF NORWICH
POBOX 376
NORWICH, W, O5O55

BooVPågc: none referenæd.

EXISTNG IRON
HELD FOR UNE
PLAN NOIE 2)

PIPE
(SEE

TlEi
NOZr6'50'E

11.2A' -\ -\\
-\

/
\\/t

I-\\
ROBIN SHIELD
C/O NORTH IVEST MANAGEMENT LLC
I50 W MAIN ST SUITE 1760

NORFOLK. V4.23510
BoovPage: none refeßnccd.

Lr
U
L

Õ
É.

I
Ð
@o
z

\\\\-\ .\
\ärìì- - \

--. __ã""åjf"- *-..\ \.\ -\

ßg

Fo
-o
@

DEVELOPMENT EI.ÍVELOPE

0.51+ ACRE (22,165 SO. FT.)

20-59.000

KATHEME S. FISTìER
DAVID A. LIITZ
I I7 DUTTON HILL RD
NORWICH, VT,0s055
Book/Pagc: 228-204-206

äl
5.06'

EXISTING AXEL

20-62.000
20-62.000

4.16+ ACRES
181,515+ SQ. FÏ.

(PER PLAN NOTE 1 & 2)

THEODORE THOMPSON
LESLIE DUSTIN
] I DUTTON HILL RD
NORWÌCH, vT,05055
Boolfage:198f75

GENERAI SURVEY NOTES:

l. HoRIzoNTAL OATUM: W SrA'fE PLAl.lE GRID NADEJ (SURVFI FEET) FROM

GPS OBSERVATION.

20-61.000

llE: }
o
É

BRYANT B. REICHERT
80 BRÀGG HILL ROAD
NORWICH, VT,05055
BoolJPagc: 215-249

PLAN REFERENCES:.

1. 's,JR\Ey FoR BARBARA HoLLANo lN NoRWcH vERMoNf DAIEo: JANUARY

10, 1961: PREPARED BY BYRON KIDDER, KIDoER SUR\EYNG COMPANY

z. 'slinvei pLAN FoR DAvtD H. & FRANcES M.P. BURNHAM, DUTToN HILL RoAD'- aC¡co HILL RoAD, NoRwtcH, w.' DATE. JUNE l, 1990; PRoJEcr No' 316890;

PREPARED BY: T&M ASSOCIAIES INC.. LEBANON' N.H.

so2't E'501t
+.70 591'A ALONG APPROX. R.O,IV. o

o
Ð-J

4A, METAL FENCE POST BRAGC HILL ROAD
HELD FOR L|NE (SEE PLAN _ _

2)NOTE

20-55.000
RECORD OWNERS: GREGORY & EMILE CALVELO HYNES

6016 OPEN RANGE TRAIL
AUSTIN, TEXAS 7874920-55.000

CHA-RIES E, RICHARDS
JEA]W L, RICHARDS
54 SIWSON ROAD
NORWTCH, vT,05055{i58
Book/Page: 2 I 5-537

COLETTE L. GAUDIN (LtrE ESTA.TE)
I I SIMPSON RD
NORWICH, w' 05055
BoolilPage: 231-543

LEGEND

PIPE, AXLE OR FENCE POSÍ

CAPPED REBAR TO BE SET

COMPUTEO POINT

BOUNDARY UNE

RIGI{T-OF_WAY

BUILDING SETBACK UNE

O AS NOIEo

o
o

I HEREBY CERNFY TO 1IIE BEST OF MY KNOWLEOGE AND ABIUTY THAT A VERMONT

nuir¡icL¡ss suRvEy wAs pERx¡RMED fo DErERMINE THE NoRIH AND wEsr BouNoARlEs.

rurs- sunvf rS aAslED oN 'tHE FTELD NolEs oF sAD SURVEY AND tHE BoUNDARY uNEs

ARÈ CoxérsrE¡fl- wm.t gxrsnxo MoNUMENTAïoN Ar'lD ïlE REFERENcED DEEos AND PLANs

EXCEPÍ AS NOTEO.

DA'IE UCENSED LAND SURVEYOR

#54DE25 Exhibit 5



to-6a.om

TOWN OIj NORWICTI

20-ô6.t@

su&Ecf TO

20-59.@

20-ô2,000

20-6r.m

LEGEND

P¡PE dE OR ENCE POf
WPED Rffi TO 8Ë Sfl
COMPtrO POIM

EOUNDAtr UNE

Rtcfr-ot-waY
AUIÚIÑG SMK UNE

20-5J.@0

o Jo 60 90 120 150

CIIÆES E RICHÐS
ÆNL.ruCHMS
54 SIWSON ROÐ
NORWCH. VT.050i5¡358
Boowaee: 215-537

COLEN'E L. GAM]N GIFE ESTATE)
I I SIWSON Ð
NORWCH VT. O5O55

Boowage:231-i4i

IN FEFT

SHOWN

DESIGNED BY: PAB

DRAWN

CHECKED BY: JSG

DATE: 09-2025
î

N0.1048E 10F2SHEËI

PATHWAYS CONSULTING, LLC
240 MECHANIC S-TRETT, SUITE 1OO
LEBANON, NÉW HAMPSHIRE 03766

(603) 448-2200
CHECKED APPROVED

FI

EXISITNG CONDITIONS

GREGORY HYNES
TAX MAP 20, LO'T 60

DUTION ROAD, NORWCH, VERMONI
DATE DESCRIPTION

MADE
BIRÊVISION

#54DE25 Exhibit 6



)
/

BMG

SITE LOCATION PLAN

. 
APP'D

FT
MADE
s/

CHKD
BY

REV.
NO.

DATE DESCRIPTiON

D(+
SITE PLAN FOR

GREGORY HYNES
DUÍON HILL ROAD _ NORWICH, VERMONT

SHEEr:2 OF 2

SCALE: A.s.

DES. BY: JSG

DMWN BY: PAB

CHKD. BY: JSG

O^fEt os/25
PROJ. N0. 1M3-o1

PATHWAYS CONSULTING, LLC
240 MECHANIC STREfl, SUITE lOO

LEBANON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03766
(603) 4+8-22Oo

nt

Õ
b

do
I

I

',ô

IRON

ZONING INFORMATION:

fHE SUEJECÍ PROPEW IS WffiIN frE TOWN OF NORUCH, WRMOI RU& REIDElru (RR) ZONING DI$RICI ND IS

èiieÈff rc u ÆÞusEE lowN zoNrNc coDs, R[cuuroNs, No onolNncs. MlNluuM REQulRilEm lNcLUoE:

MINIMUM LOI M& 2 rcRS
MINIMUM LOI rcMAGE IONG RIGffi_OF_WAY 90 Efl
M¡N. sruX ffioM BOUNOffi AoNG RlGfr-oF-wAY Or A HßHWAY oR PRVATE RoÆ: 20 Efl
M¡N. SßCX mOV OffER LOf SOUNDÆ16: 10 Eff
MlN. SßcK mOM ffirus: 50 Éfl
MlN. sE]&X ffiOU wroos: 50 EÍ

{OWN NORW¡CH ZONING REGUUTONS MED ilENOEO JULY 1, 2æS.

20-6A-100

GENERAL NOTES:

I. HORIZOMÅ DAruM: W SAE PUN GRID MD83 (SUM EÐ rcM CPS

OBSEWATON.
2. WmR DAruM: NOm ilERIN Em4 DATUV 1988 (MW8 ROM CPS

oBsEw noN.
J. P frWAE CONSUIÍNG, [C UÌUZ€o flru SUffi. Tg W, UOÆ, N0

2016 ÆRA IWEfl MTA rcR fr6 PW. UDM NO ÆRA IWEtr ÆE
MOM üE WRMOM CEMS FOR GEæWHIC INFORBTON (VCG) WEB 5M.

4. PAflWAE CONSULTNG. [C CONOUfrÐ Sffiff rcPæWHIC ND OTAL
sUffiNG IN 2O2J IO l&E üE €æE OF SLOPT 

,RIP. Æffi ÑD TO

6ÆUSH Am[ fOPæWHIC CONOmONS TO 4ISME UDAR INFORU¡ON
ß SHOWN gIflNG æNOMONS PUN MEO JULY 28, 2023.

5. PAffWAE CONSULINC, [C CONDUqÐ BOUN|Ñ SURWNC fO PREPÆE

frE PUT FOR frIS PRdE6 NO ÐOMOW rcPæWH¡C SUffiINC
PROXIMAE rc BE PrcPOSEO OffiLOPMN ffiOPE INCLUDING LO$ÏNC
ilO W Pre OESffD fl OruRMN SUffiING ¿ SEMC OEIGN.

6, frE PROPOSEO ONSm WffiÂ[R oISPOS ffiV OSIGN lS ffiEO É
ry INrcRUION W ONERS IO DEMOME WB¡W.

o 20 40 60 80 100

IN FEET

20-59.æ0

LËGEND

CÆPEO REilR fO BE Sfl
COSPWO POIM

BOUN|Ñ UNE

RIGffi_OF_WAY

@ Æ NOED

o
a

20-68.@0

ROOF

'712, :

--PROPOSEÞ 3 BE¡ROOM HOUSE
FFe 742.ø

ìvl sEDRooM
APARruENl
FFE. 740.s

PROPOSEO CARAGE
WALKOUÍ FFE 7J4.O

4,XJ5'LEACHING TRENCH

fREATMENTTANK

AUIUINC STSCK UNE

OMRMN SUffi & DESIGN W PIT

JOHN ruRNER æNSULTINC ]r PÍ
O os&sD tl
o frc11

#54DE25 Exhibit 7



CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that on the 1sr day of October, 2025, a Notice for a Site Visit at 00 Dutton Hitt for October 16,

2025 als:1SPM and for a Pubtic Hearing of the DeveLopment Review Board for october 16,2025 to be hetd at

the Town of Norwich and via zoom at 6:30 PM in reference to Apptication #548CU25: Devetopment Envelope

Review; Applicant(s)/Landowners: Gregory Hynes and Emitie Catvetto Hynes;00 Dutton Hitt RD; Parcel lD:

20-060. 00; Rurat Res t (RR) D¡strict. This notice was sent to the following abutters appticant and

ta

Zoning Administrator

APPLI CANTS/LAN DOWN ERS:

HYN ES, GREGORY 20-060.OOO

HYNES, EMILIE CALVELLO

6016 OPEN RANGE TRAIL

AUST|N, TX 78749-2804

ABUTTERS:

GAUDTN (LtFE ESTATE) COLETTE L 20-053.000
11 SIMPSON RD

NORWICH, VT 05055

RICHARDS CHARLES E, RICHARDS JEANNE L 2O-O55.OOO

54 SIMPSON ROAD

NORWtCH, VT 05055-0358

FISHER KATHERINE S, LUTZ DAVID A 2O-O59.OOO

117 DUTTON HILL RO

NORWICH, VT 05055

REICHERT BRYANT B 20-061.OOO

80 BRAGG HILL ROAD

NORWICH, VT 05055

THOMPSON THEODORE, DUSTIN LESLIE 20-062.OOO

31 DUTTON HILL RD

NORWICH, VT 05055

SHtELD ROBIN 20-068.1 00

C/O NORTH WEST MANAGEMENT LLC

150 W MAIN ST SUITE 1760

NORFOLK, VA 2351 O

NORWTCH TOWN OF 20-068.200

PO BOX 376

NORWICH, VT 05055

#54DE25
Exhibit 8



  

 1 

 
TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 

 
Applicant Info and Exhibit List 

 
Applicant:       UPPER VALLEY AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 
                         2514 JERICHO RD 
                         HARTFORD, VT  05001 
 
Landowner:   DYKE ROSE Z TRUST 
                        C/O JUDITH CURRIER  
                        15391 MONTRESOR ROAD 
                        LEESBURG, VA 20176 
 

 
APPLICATION #53SPR25: Site Plan and Conditional Use Review for an Open Air Market 
and a Multi-Use Building; Applicant(s): Upper Valley Agricultural Association (Norwich 
Farmers Market); Landowner: Rose Z Dyke Trust; 00 US Route 5 S; Parcel ID: 15-042.000; 
Rural Residential (RR) District.   
 
The record in this case includes the following documents: 
 
1. Application #53SPR25 (09-24-2025) 
2. Narrative with Exhibit Attachments by Applicant, Upper Valley Agricultural 

Association (9-26-2025) 
Exhibit Attachments: 
A.  UVAA Traffic Comments 
B.  Landscape Plan 
C.  Floor Plans & Elevations 
D.  Exterior Lighting Plan 
E.  Wetland Report 
F.  Site Plans 
G. Property Survey 
 

3. Abutter Certificate of Mailing and Public Hearing Warning (10-01-2025) 



TOWN OF NORWICH, VERMONT
APPLICATION FOR ZONING PERMIT 53 s(&)f

Owncr(s): Rose Z. Dykes Trust

Mail Add¡eSg. c/o Judith Cunier 15391 Montresor Rd. Town Leesburg ST ve Zip 20176

DayPhone: F03)737-2282 Eve phone: Emaíl:

Applicant (If Diffe¡ent) Upper Valley Agricultural Association

Mail Address' 2514 Jericho Rd. Tow' H"x!Í_.------sr w zip osoot

Day Phone: 847-867-2374 Eve pl¡one: 802-28l-S8S0 Em ai I : lîlo@'rppoNâllêydgdcu¡turâta$oclailon.org

Description of Proposed Developmen
Relocate the Non¡vich Fârmers Market across Route 5 from ¡ts curent focalion and develop a multi-use market building.

Zoning District: RR VR I VR fM ClI Ae

Bu'dingserbacks- *ii,LÏffi"ff';,#.
sizeof Building(s)/Additions: srructureA: width s3, Length ios, I-leight .u.*r"
Stmcture B: Width +g' Lengtþ 35'-8" Height gs' Area: Footprint of Strucfu¡s d 5BlB

Additional Fooþrinr of Snucture B (if any) 1748 fe6l7566
Estimated Date of Completion: Fall'26/Spring/27 Estimated Value $ g,O0O,o00

{"F**+*******************'**'l'***,1.**********,t*******+*****+******+***+*,***¡ß*******t+***t
Please Attach: Site Plan with building locations, well & septic locations, roads, driveways, and streams. Drawing of
fooçrint ofnew consbuctiou and outlines of additional flooìs. Elevation Drawing of multi-story buildings.

- The undersigned hereby agrees thât the proposed devetopment shall be buitt in accordance with the
foregoing statements, attached plans, and in accordance with the zoning and subdivision regulations of the
Town of Norwich, and certifÏes that the above is true, correct, and complete. The owner 

"onients 
to inspections

of the real estate that is the subject of the application by the Zoning AdminiJtrator at reasonable times.

Signature of Landowner (or Authorized Agent)d*H-Á Date O? ' lV ' Jaz{r*¡F*******¡ßx*** tl*ttr***+****t**,1.+¡ß**¡ß*******rt ************{.*>F********************t *******

# of Parking Spaces 25o+t-

# of Bedroo¡ns N/A

Tnning Office Checklist:
_ Flood Hazard Area

_ Wetlands

_ Septic Location

_ Water Supply

_ Parking

_ Shoreline

_ Aquifer Protection

_ Permit Conditions

_ Agricultural Exemption

Comments:

Signature of Zoning Administrator
8/t1

Additional Permits Required:
_ Subdivision

_ Conditional Use
Site Plan Review

Fees:
Base Fee $

Sq.Ft.x_ $

# of Lots
Recording
Other

Total
Date Paid
To Finance

$

Application/Permit #

_ Variance

_ PRD

_ Driveway Access
'Wastewater

Action
Received
Complete
Granted
Refused
Posted at Site
Appeal By
Effective
Expires

Datesas,
ITqo^ãD

$-$ f 1.,ù

1

D
s

Dft{L 01,'t llt*;,' lo'i L } Í'

Exhibit 1



Properúv Owner Consent

I of the Trust Agreement dated January 27 ,2010,

made by Rose Z. Dyke ("Trust"), property owner of the approximat ely 34.7 acre parcel of land

otr M-t,Tax Parcel Id 15-042.000 and Span 450-1 42-12743 (ooProperty"), hereby consenr to

the Upper Valley Agricultural Association, Inc.'s ("IJVA¡q" or "Applicant') application to the

Town of Norwich for necessary zoning approvals for development of the Property for its

proposed farmer's market.

Property Owner
aôâ3

Date Trustee



$I*å"Y#f^þ
- --'¡,SSOCIATIO¡yì"

September 26,2025

Dear Members of the Norwich Devetopment Review Board,

Project Description: The Upper Vattey AgricutturaI Association (UVAA), a 501(c)3, seeks to acquire
and improve a property comprising 34.7 acres with Tax Map #15-042.000 (tocated on US Route 5
acrossfromthecurrentfarmer'smarket),tocreateapermanent homeforthesummerandwinter
markets for the Norwich Farmers' Market ("Market") and to provide a venue for a range of
accessory and complementary activities, such as ctasses, demonstrations, and locaI food tastings
that wítt educate and invotve the community.

The Market is a popular outtet for farmers and other [oca[ vendors to setl their products and wares
to the pubtic, but site and access timitations at the existing location require this retocation to
enabte the Market to remain viabte in the future.

This permanent home witt inctude a 7500 ptus square foot buitding to attow the Market to serve its
vendors and ctients especiatty during periods of inctement weather, which occur more frequentty
than in the past. Our plan wittatso inctude ampte parkíng, better-defined parking spaces, and
improved traffic ftow.

ln addition, the UVAA seeks to offer community fundraising events and to rent the facitit¡es to
interested parties to hetp ensure the f inanciat viabitity of the enterprise.

Hours of Operation

The UVAA facitities wi[[ operate year-round with the peak times occurring on Saturdays between
9am and 1pm during the traditional weekty farmer's market event. Additionat regutar hours witt be

daytime and early evenings for ctasses and demonstrations.

Ctass sizes for these related activ¡ties witt be between 15 to 45 peopte, and they wit[ run for a few
hours each session. Additionat seasonaI activities may inctude community events such as an

appte press party, a farm to table tasting event, sheep shearing and other agriculturat-retated
demonstrations.

Construction Phase

The phases of devetopment of the property are contingent upon raising the necessary f unds
through grants and phitanthropy. Our intent¡on is to break ground in the spring of 2026 and
comptete the project before the snow fatts in 2026. We ask for ftexibitity, however, on this timetine
due to the uncertainty of when fundraising witt be comptete.

P.O. Box 525 Norwich, VT 05055

#53SPR25
Exhibit 2



Traffic

The current summer market hosts approximatety 850 cars on most Saturdays overthe course of
four hours.

The current summer market traffic within the site is less than ideat. With the new proposed access
point, better design and additionaI designated spaces, the congestion on Route 5 witt decrease if
not be etimínated attogether, and the parking area witl be much safer to navigate.

The traffic for the winter market witt be significantty less due to fewer out-of-area visitors, and it witt
completety remove any congestion caused by the farmers' market in the vittage during the winter
months.

RuraI Resident¡a[ (RR) District

Site design shatt be configured to reinforce the d¡str¡ct's rural character and historic working
landscape, characterized by wooded hittsides and knotls, open fields, and a visuaI and

functionaI relationship of structures to the surrounding tandscape.

The proposed site is an open overgrown former hayfietd. This tocation is suitabte for this facitity

because, in our view, the [andscape of the current open fietd comptements and enhances

Vermont's Agriculture heritage. lt witt be an outtet to altow [ocaI farmers to remain viabte by having a

centra[ location to setttheir products. We betieve that the design of the buitding wit[ represent the

best of Vermont's agricutturaI herítage. The buitding witt be representative of the scale and design

of many Vermont barns throughout Vermont.

Conditional Use Criteria

(1) The capacity of existing or ptanned community services or facilities

We do not believe that this project witt ptace an undue burden on Norwich's abitity to service

this facitity. This market facitity currently ex¡sts in a more rudimentary form, and we are now

merety proposing to move it across the street and upgrade some aspects of the market. Other

than the proposed buitding, which witl enhance the viabitíty of the winter market and during

times of inctement weather, the market wi[[ retain the characteristics and aura of the current

market.

The winter market now occupies Tracy Hatt. That winter activity witt be moved to the proposed

buitding on the site. This move witl lessen the activity in the centrat vittage and keep it in roughty

the same tocation atong Route 5 in an environment that is attached to the working landscape.

(2) The character of the area affected

This segment of Route 5 already has commercialand industriaI activities as wetl as substantial
residentiaI development in Norwich and Witder. The Norwich town ptan envisions this parcel for



devetopment. We betieve this market wit[ serve the residentiaI devetopments atong Route 5

and complement the commerciaI nature of the surrounding businesses yet retain some ruraI

context with this proposed act¡vity.

(3) Traffic on roads and highways in the vicinity.

As for the main activity of the farmers' market, there witt be no additionaI impact on the roads

than what currently exists as the retocation of this market witt atteviate the traffic patterns along

Route 5.

Ampte space has been attotted to parking, and we betieve the access and círcutation of this
parking arrangement wit[ dramaticatty lessen the Saturday congestion atong Route 5. This area

is stightty [arger than the current parking area.

(4) Ordinances. Bytaws and Regutat¡ons ¡n effect.

The proposed devetopment atigns with the new changes to the Norwich zoning ordinance in

that it is specif icatly mentioned as a conditionaI use for this district.

(5) The utitization of renewable energy resources.

This Property is targe enough that it witt not interfere with sustainable use of energy resources of

a ny neighboring property.

The roof of the buitding witt be designed to accommodate sotar panets which may be placed

there in the future depending on the avaitabitity of grants and tax credits.

Site Ptan Review Standards

(1) Maximum safety of vehicular circulation between the site and the street network.

Our entrance to the project has the pretiminary approvaI f rom the Agency of Transportation as

the site distances are more than adequate to ptace a curb cut in this location. We atso chose

this [ocation to minimize the wettand impact to crossing the wettands. See E-mail from AOT

Exhibit A

(2) Adequacy of circulation, parking and toading facitities with particular attention to
safety.

We acknowtedge that this parking facitity is targe to accommodate the poputarity of this

market. We have broken the tot into two segments to minimize the asphatt...the area ctosest to

the buitding witt be paved and the area to the north witl be a structural grassed parking area.

Adequate parking facitities for peopte with disabitities with ADA standards are provided.

Provisions have been made for wheelchair van parking w¡th an area for safe loading and

untoading.



Ctearances and turning radii are sufficient to accommodate service and detivery vehictes

required for the norma[ âct¡v¡ties on the site, and fire trucks and other emergency vehicles.

(3) Landscaping.

Landscaping is proposed around the devetopment envelope on the property as shown on the

Landscape Ptan submitted with this apptication.

The proposed ptan for Norwich Farmers Market includes an overa[[ [andscape concept design

to meet the town of Norwich [andscape regutations.

The ptans inctude a focus of new devetopment within the exist¡ng mowed-fietd area with

emphasis on maintaining the existing perimeter [andscaping near the property tine. ln addition,
we are inctuding use of both deciduous and coniferous varieties with a mix of evergreen and

f towering shrubs and bushes adjacent the buitding to comptement shade trees and other
[andscape features.

Att shade trees are 2.5" minimum caliper. The choice and ptacement of ptantings in the parking

area considers the speciat hazards of satt, vehictes, and maintenance equipment.

We atso woutd tike to note the provision of W wetland buffer and riparian species such as red

mapte, white birch, yettow birch, aspen, red-twig dogwood and hemtock. These species are

wetl suited to this ctimate and shoutd thrive once estabtished.

Lastty, the ptan inctudes a conservation seed mix and witdftower mixtures in areas where there

are cut and fiLt slopes, detent¡on basin side stopes, and disturbed areas where slope

conditions occur. See Landscape Plan and Detait Sheets Exhibit B

(4) Screening.

The proposed ptan inctudes additionat proposed evergreen varieties atong the
perimeter/property-t¡ne where appropriate and where the existing [andscape conditions do not

currentty provide a dense buffer. ln addition, the extended entry drive onto the site provides

greater distance from Christ¡an Street with a variety of new [andscape ptantings ptaced on

either side of the entry drive.

(5) Bicycte & Pedestrian Access.

The ptan includes on-site pedestrian circulation inctuding a proposed watkway atong the West

side of the entry drive to the on-site parking areas and new buitding. In addition, a bicycle rack

has been provided for pubtic access and centratty tocated between the new buitding and the

market vendor stations. Lastty, adequate access from the parking area to the buitding and

vendor areas are provided as part of this proposaI inctuding ADA parking with dedicated

walkway route(s) as shown on the civit ptans.



(6) Outdoor Storage & Disptay.

There witt be no outdoor storage. The vendors are at[ required to remove their wares upon the

conctusion of a market event.

(7) Building Design.

The buitding's architecture will resemble a barn to f it within the context of Vermont's

agricutturaI heritage. See Etevations Exhibit C

(8) Building and Site Lighting.

Building:

A[[ exteríor buitding mounted tight fixtures being proposed are:
Shietded or cut off f ixtures.
The tight sources witt not be visibte from Route 5 or f rom adjacent properties.
The CRI for the f ixtures is 80+ to 90+
The tight fixture circuits witt be on timers.

This is a tight fixture mounted to the exterior walt of the vestibules and provides tíght at the
exterior entrances as required by the buitding code. They are adjustabte.

S¡te L¡ght¡ng:

The proposed ptan inctudes an overatl tighting design which atigns with the intent of the town
regutations, i.e., to provide appropriate tighting while minimizing its undesirabte effects.

This inctudes the use of dark-sky-friendty recessed, shietded, and cutoff fixtures. Att tighting
has been designed within the paved parking area and surrounding the buitding in effort to
provide the minimum required for safety, securíty, and intended use consistent with the
character of the neighborhood and zoning district.

Att information regarding exterior tighting fixtures, inctuding f ixture type, mounting tocation
and height, ittumination levets and distribution, and cotor, are submitted as part of the
apptication tighting ptan herein.

The overat[ tighting goat is to provide the minimum required fixtures for safety, security and
intended use consistentty with the character of the neighborhood. The levets of tight¡ng have
been focused within the interior portion of the paved parking area and the buitding perimeter.

The overa[[ tighting design atigns with the intent of the Town regutations to provide appropriate
tightingwhite minimizing its undesirabte effects. See L¡ght¡ng Ptan. Exhibit D

(9) Stormwater Ma nagement.

We are asking for a waiver of a futt-btown stormwater management ptan ât this stage. We are

subject to the jurisdiction of Act 250 and are required to appty for and receive a state approved

1.

2.
3.
4.



stormwaterdischargepermit. Conceptuatlyweareptanningtodirectstormwaterrun-offtoa
detention pond on the eastern port¡on of the property. The pretiminary stormwater

management ptan consists of a combinatíon of roof top disconnections such as infittration
trenches or dry wetts as feasibte for groundwater recharge, utitizing grass treatment channets

and deep catch basins for some pre-treatment of impervious surfaces, instatling porous

pavement in parking stalts where feasibte to possibty provide infittration or treatment and

detention as feasibte, and some combination or either dry, wet, or gravelwettand ponds for

treatment and detention.

(10) Protection of NaturaI Resources.

The project has been designed to protect naturat resources on and surrounding the Property.

The project witt devetop less than a third of the avaitabte acreage of the Property. The forest

area witl remain untouched, and the site devetopment ptan incorporates a significant buffer

zone between the devetopment and the designated wettand areas on the Property except as is

necessary for vehicular access. This wettand impact witl require a state wetland permit and

the wetland biotogist for this reg¡on has toured the site and confirmed the ftagging and

proposed ctassif ications of our wettand consuttant. See Wettand Summary Exhibit E

(11) Fire and Pubtic Safety.

The Property is easity accessible for emergency vehicles, and we have designed the project to
altow f ire vehicte access around the buitding in the event of a fire. The building is not proposed

to have sprinkters as these are not required by the State of Vermont Department of Pubtic

Safety, Division of Fire Safety.

(12) Underground Utilities, Water and Wastewater.

Att utitities witt be underground.

The water and sewer may be provided by the town of Hartford as we have had some
preliminary, very positive discussions with the Hartford Setectboard, the town manager and

the Hartford Department of Pubtic Works. We are working through some technicaI
requirements and hope to have a firm commítment wrapped up soon.

(13) Site Plans

See Site Ptans Exhibit F

(14) Property Survey

See Survey Exhibit G



EXHIBITA
UVAA Traffic Comments

#53SPR25



From: Clow, Christopher <Ch ristopher.Clow@vermont.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, August t3,2025 3:43 PM

To: M cAvoy, Bria n <Bria n. M cAvoy@vermont.gov>
Subject: RE: Curb cut input

Hey Brian,

I appreciate the information. I looked this over and checked out the Norwich Farmer's Market
website. Overall, I don't see any issue with this from a traffic/trip standpoint. They are already
doing this venue across the street as you said so they are just shifting it over. As the applicant
mentioned, there won't be much of a shift or addition in traffic because of that. The only difference
will now be winter operations but as the applicant mentioned - winter operations were taking
place anyway in downtown Norwich. The website affirms what you mentioned that the market is
just open on Saturdays....and at a limited time at that. The farmers market looks to be open from
just 9am to Lpm so we are talking about a facility that is open one day a week for approximately
four hours.

As far as crash history, there are only three crashes in the vicinity of this area in the last five years.
All of them are property damage only and look to be at the access of Olcott Drive and one crash at
the hardware store access [rear endJ. That is not enough crashes in this 0.3-mile segment in five
years to make this a High Crash Location. As far as US-5 volume in this area, a 20LB measurement
has this road at 4,500 annual average daily traffic (AADT). However, in looking at the days,
Saturdays are one of the lower volume days compared to the other days of the week. Saturday has a

daily volume of approximately 4,400 vehicles per day while a Wednesday or Thursday or Friday
will have over 6,000 vehicles a day. I don't see any congestion issues - 4,400 vehicles per day is a
relatively low volume.

Chris
Christopher Clow, PE I Transportation Engineer

Poliry, Planning, and Research Bureau / Development Review and Permitting Services

Poliry, Planning, and Intermodal Development Division
Vermont Agenry of Transportation
219 North Main Street I Barre, VT 05641

802-522-4901, phone I christopher.clow@vermont.gov
http://www.vtrans. vermon



EXHIBIT B
Landscape Plan

#53SPR25



'J-

+

_ ptctslc
AREA

rl
-t'

+

+

+

PARKING

+ +,)".i
eulLorr,rci

\
\

ilt¡

tY)

+

t1

+

E¡

a +

I + +

,*/.oRrvF ,**;N\

I

rt
I

I

LP

ê
LP

¿

I

I

LP

r-

<)

g

,t
\ l_,,

!- +'7" -

r\<- -".-._
¡

I

I
I

I

{\

ì \7 I /

\

\

\

+

I
g e9[:eüF
ä :;å ËÌ õzr ;
Ë 6dÈ tË øEË È

z
o
F
õr
\J

l.(r
o_<

E.TU=Ho-lzfdnVY(.Döü
o<zàH
-¡S g

É.
[ü
o-
o-
f

dc

õ

+
2539

RdCf XUTÊR

f
+

+ + lssued for

Permit Review

\
\

Z

l"

l.

OVERFLOW
PARKiNG

I

1

t
I
\

t æld ÉËiltæK

IÀ

!

I

4

5Rd
SIXE P&ÑG* 

\ 
flo#ÁGs)

@*-
CONCEPTUAL

VENDOR
\ AREA

,{

I

\

\

th

'./

i\

|-'í't'l-- \
I st#osusH

--**-,

\\

ù

¿'-
I

I

L*

\\

. 1-:

\ì
\\

\\

ì\

i:
tJ

"-þ*
)

t\

3w[7hcH

\

\,;

==

I

Ì

PS

0Esr6¡
PS

DRASI{

PS

c*Í(0

. .--'J '\

T \\ / /-l\
I

\1

v wMEruEmY/z

3 ForHKrU

\

.\

\\
\\

/
jIToRMWATER ,/

/ DRAINAGE /
AREA 

--/ -,l _--- /

r\

sc^t¡ l'-30'

It

I

Oñe, 09118t2025

,/*

L1 .0\*- -

I

(

.I

ìF

i

I

.l(
\(

tl
ll

,l

lr\

I

I
(

(

7-

\f
dgNG EdAM

..\.r \

\
\*

)

tirlipchI
I

\
I ENTRY

I

301503060

-

GR¡PHIC SCáI"€

1' - 30'

nst

- l¡rd-A. Plo¡.ùg- S&ñpsC D Fll.!¡



I

z
¡
I
I

=*
I

z
l
g

!
3

¿)
¡

Bowman
Boman

4æ geL Pe* &.
ì1r6tu, Vrmqt 054*t
Fhoñ: (æ) 87s.69í

3 S.hæl H@ Ln.
EÙta, Nil Hepshl€ 08?50
PhoÈ: (6ß) eæ,mo

Oûbm@@ü

LANDSCAPE PLAN
UPPER VALLEY AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION

U.S. ROUTE 5 & HOPSON RD, NORWICH, VT

n
ft

É@

=@

-o
<D_=øÊ. 9a

=E_P.a<D-€

TøI

tø
I

ã

ø

F

¡
I

o

ù

r
ñ
õ



rl

.g
EEH iEË E

Ê:ä tiä Ë

ËCË frgF Ë

z
o
t-

9 H:

= 
2 ËtJ^LtJIzo+d
=uJ!=

ñ:f,óE ¿.t ô_

óEÎu)<oàE
2JO
--rEff3

É
Lll
o-
o-
f

2539

XUTBER

lssued for

Permit Review

PS

DES6t{

PS

DRAXT{

PS

c8K0

SCATT AS NOTED

ÐA1E I Ogl18PO25

L1 .2

NORWICH VT LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS LANDSCAPE SCREENINC BICYCLE & PEDESTRIAN ACCESS BIKE RACK INSTALLATION DETAIL

SECTION 5.03 pilt (3)
(3) Lo&coping, Lmdseping shall entrucc the fearwes ed condirions ùique to cach
site, md should include a combi¡âtiod of shrde t¡ees (dæiduous od,/or coniierous.¡.
d@iduú md evqg¡q shnbs, wcll kcpt grasses üd glowd coveß. Lmdscaping is
required in font ud side yr¡ds, ¡d¡ccnt to püking æas, md wherc r* yuils rbut
¡$idential propenies or public ro¡ds.

a, todscrping plm shall eaphasize thc following:

i) The presêrâtion of cisting ground covcr úd tsêes, especislly (hose thât
@ matrc or detcdi¡ed to be of spccial hofticulErâl or lmdsccpc value.

ii) The use of both dæiduos md coniferous shade tcs in ovailablé yud rm.
espêchlly Êonr üd sidc ydds, püking úêrs ùd clong stseet lincs.
Sh¡de ûees should be placed to intmpt the fâcodes of buildings, break-
up expms* of puking, visully rcduæ the scale ud bulk of lüge
büìldings, i¡têgFtê rhe sire wirl¡ smunding propdi€s, cstcblish a line$
paÍeñ of stræt æs rlong ro¡d frontagê, ùd enhuæ .nvirc@ent¡l
qulity (e.g,, vildlÌfe hab¡ât, soil shbilizatioi, sto¡m wâte¡ rctêntion, ù
qu¡lity, ênergy conscfl ârion).

iü) the üseoffloweringommental Aø o complement sh¡dô treesin
instæes wherc large yud æu oxist, ud whcrc sprce limitÂtiotr prêv€nt
the plmting of shsd€ ts€s.

iv) tsdscoping beds which enhucc thc gcneml app@ce of ùe sirê,
delmc plmting stips md buffê! reas ùd ûinimiæ the uoht of g¡ass
l¡vn ü6, Süch bêds æ not to bc coßid€red r subßtitute for Err
plmtings or othcr opd spæe lcqüiremdts,

v) Â mia ofevqgrcøudflowqi¡gslt.ub6 md bwhes should be uêd
adþ@ot to bùildings, within plmting beds ùd to compleû€nt shadc üæs
ûd othq lmdsc¡pi¡g f€m.

b. In rdclition, landscspiag plms ue subjecr to thè followìngi
i) Sh¡dc tsêcs sh¡ll be r mi¡imuh of 2.5" c.lipêr (nnk diuêrer), mcssurcd

¡r a height of 5 fcet, oi i¡ thc @c of ænifercus ft6, bc c minimum of 8 fee!
in heighr, ûless othwisê speciâed by rhe Boûd upon coúidemrion
of site @nditiod; be a spæies with a otrmtial life cxpetucy ûd a
tolcmce for soil comprction, d¡ought 4d" if læ.ted aloûg stcct lines,
salt; md be ofnâtive rigin, prcvide¿ tlnr they 6ect the abovc øitdia.
thc plantìng of singlc gende¡ dcciduou ft* shall bc avoided.

ii) Thc Board nay æquirc thc submission of o thrcc ycc plan for cll
proposcd lmds@ping. Bøding or othcr sucry may be requi¡ed to c¡süc
itrbllatiotr ed môinbnùce.

SECUON s.03 pilt (4)
(4) Scræning. Sufficient scræning shrll bc pþvided when lhe Development Rcview
Boüd detemines that adequte sæeni¡g is not prcvided by topogÉphical or other
bmi*. Saeenhg shcll be required where c more intensivc lmd ue is proposed to
rbut c less in¡ffiive usc; tdþccnr to gübig€ collection md utility ras, sriellìte
mt€ffis, outdoo! stoÉge, md loading md unloading û€s ûd olhe¡ outdoor utilities
md facilities; md when the project ûdveßely impacb rdþcent plopedies (e.g., lighting,
ourdær stomgc, etc,), ln oddition:

c, Saæning shell providc a yer-roud visu¡l sdcên, púiculùly ftod
roâds. A diversity of mted.b to ø€tc û mtrúlized screen is
encouaged nthcr ile a la¡ge cxpùse of uintenpteq ùifo¡m ûôt€dal
so lmg rs sffcicnt sqeeni¡g is obbine¿ Milerials may include fmcing,
shrde trees, cvdgftcn ùd f,owering slults, ræks, mounds or
coúbi¡atioß thereof to achievê ihe suê objectives.

b. A.mgemcnt of scÉening shall plovide protetion to adj.cent propenies
ed avoid dMage to êxisting plürìngs. If F<oûrouing of the siro is
p¡oposed, thc side slope shcll bc usêd for plsrings. A msdûúm of 4: I
slope is recomended.

SECTION 5.03 püt (5)
(5) Bicycle & Ped6Eiú Äccêss. On-sitc pedestio circulation linkcd to pedesrim
fâcilities located on adþent propenies üd/or along pubtìc ioads, md to o¡-site
pdking @s, sh¡ll be providc¿ Such accoss shall t¡ke the fom of sidewalks for
walking ud bicycling, or other focili¡ies dêp.nding upon the property's locrtion, site
conditids úd prcximity to other bicycle/þedestsiú fâcilitics, Àcccss poi¡6 ¡t propefty
edges shall bc c@rdi¡rted with existing md plmed development to prov¡dc lrcdestim
comections betwæn uss. Bicycle r.cks shrll be ¡€qui¡€d for æmercixl ùd pùblic
ues intended for genercl public access. In oddition, adequte access from the poking
ü6 ùd sidewalks to the building(s) that æ open to the geneml public ahâll be
providcd for people with disabilities.

Nml
BreMß SruBE BYDERO/EÄW DW OR
APPROWD EQUI COWqORIO ROME SHOP
DMWG FOR ÆROVÆMOR rc NSMNON.

NE WILDFLOWER SEED MIX SPECS

NOR]BSNÂMWDFrcWSEEDMPÆDN&S gOWONNDSCAPEN

NORîMSWDEOWRSffDMTO COMÑAWOWOF>67%PEreMVM
TO NSTGROWOFmDmWmtrATONN SC6Sm rc.

MW.CO¡4SEDffiS OR ÆPROWD EQUAL

SLOPE PIANTING TYPE QTY SIZE

CORdORTOSTAæMOM

colo* sMs
SELORl]]mCOLORBYOW

Nmi SE¡ruPNSTRCONCffi PÐNS&ÏONDmÆ
NE WLOFLOIIER MIXTURE

NEW ENGLAND CONSERVATION SEED MIX SPECS TURF PLANTINC DETAIL TREE PLANTINC DETAIL
NOT TO SCALE

STEEL LANDSCAPE EDGING DETAIL
WNONDCONSRVATONSEDffi PNæDN&S WOWONNSCÆPN NüTOSCÆ NqTO SC&E

ffiW ENO|Æ CONSRVATON/ruMWROÐH A PEW COWROFOMSStr,
ruMWS,NGOIJre. rcRBM@ODROSIONCOMOLNWLDMMBNATVALW. ffi ffi IS
DESIOffiDTOBEA NOH|mNCE SEÐNO. MIS ÆRORÀMrcR ffiN MSLOPES. DMMION
BASNSDEMM, N DfruÐ ESÆJACNTO COMfuMTSDEÌ{WROEqS,

ÆPUCAflONMG: 25US/^m SEEPUNTRLO$flONOFSmDffi

MWNGlÆCONSRVATONMXsruBEROVDÐ BYMWNONWPNS
USn;WCOM ru:41154&8m

STEEL LANDSCAPE EDGING ÀS MANUFÀCTI'RED BY:
SURE.LOC ALT'IMIN(JM EDGING CORPORATION. HOLLÀND MI
TELt lÂ6-787-3562 OR APPROVED EQUAL

.<' øe eo. 
'. S

e
e

' LANDSCAPECONTRACTORTOPROVIDE
- A2 YEARGUARAI{IEEoNAIITREEAND

SIIRUB PI.ANTINõS.

GUARANTEE PERIOD BECINS FOLLOWINC
IOO% COMPLETION OF THE U/ORK AND
FINAL SIGN-O¡¡: BY TI¡E LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT DURING ruE CONSTRUCTION
ADMIMSIRATION PI{ASE.

TRUNK FLARE . PLANÎ I .2" ABOVE

Þ
u4" x 5" x 16', (.2O - .250' AVERAGE THICKNESS)
STEEL EDGINC

SEEDED LA.WN € ÈÞ€'-
FIMSHGR,A.DE + 4

Èçi:
ROLLED DEPTH

OF LOAM

3" SI{REDDED BARK MULCH

t{Ew €rctÁno n E'nÀID Plafùfs. tNc
COMPACTED OR
I'NDISTIJRBED SUBCRADE

ta?rd l¡ú húl¡rÍry¿ UOttS
ËoEarr*Ð tr.¡g+s¡Éßlt{nE¡t¡od G þttß¡a Irwtr¡oit

BARK MULCH ANDÀBOVE EKISîINC
ORFIMSHBDGRADE

MIN.6' SAUCER

3' SÍ{REDDED BARK MIJLCH

REMOVE BIJRLAP FROM TOP IIALF
OFFROOTBAIT

ROOTBALL SITS DIRECTLY ON
IJNDISTURBED SOIL

PLANTINC SOIL MDffURE

NOTESI
TRUNKFLÀRE

PLÀCED I-2'ABOVB
MULCHSURFACE

TURF AREA.

kønú\à$ !.Êùtr

ñ@
ÍÆ

aturtwÍddú{,û fm

!tr+tu it
lqFþ

çuNtupqldMlMùtrù MnM)

ßt.tui\úùltutúLøt
UrW. tod

SEBD ATL DISTURBED AREÀS WITHIN 48 HOURS OF FINAL ORADINO.
SEED AFTER A?RIL 15TH á,ND BEFORE SEPIEMBER I5TTI IN ORDER TO
ESTABLISH BEFORE FREÊZING TEMPERATIJRES. TAPERED STEEL STAKES

TO INîERIOR SIDE OF
MI'LCHBEDAREACONÎRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO WATER AND EST.ABLISH SEBDED

LÀWN ARElrS. II'ARRANTY SHALL BË 9 WEEKS FOLLoTilINO
INSTALLATON PERIOD.

CONTRÀCTOR TO INCLIJDE NECESSÁ.RY TOUCH-UP / RESEEDINC FOR
ANY AREAS WHERE GRASS SEED DOES NOT CERMINATE DURING THE
WARRANTY PERIOD.

NOTES:

INST/,LLÄTION TO BE COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE IilTTH

MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS.HOLE - 3X WIDTÍ¡ OF ROOTBALL
WITHSLOPEDSIDES

NÔTE:
REMOVE BI'RLAP ROPE AND WIRE
FROM TOP & SIDES OF ALL BALIJ.
ADD MULCH AS SHOI'N ON PI,AN SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR LOCA,fiON OF LAWN VS. MULCHEÐ BED

A¡EAS AND PLACEMENT OF STEEL EDGINC,

SHRUB PLANTINC DETAIL GROUNDCOVER SPACINC DETAIL
NO'T TO SCALE

CONTRACTORTOPROVIDE SHOP DRÀWING TO LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
FOR APPROVAI PRIOR TO M.{TERIALS OR.DERING AND INSTA.LLATION.

4trt 1ìr¡lhcatþqlt,t
lÞi*Ê4bMrrv$l4fet¡¡*r@tættÊü'tæi.drc@t
tuwtdc!fuøüddÚÊb&td4.tuÈb&5ldþa¡dtues.û3dfråpFoÉètüd
d¡rbË,ffirHr*rFddttuô.dru.*útþ.tdddM rñt4

NOT TO SCALE

tt vlx
SLOPE PLANTING TYPÊ StzE

FINISI{ED cFJq,DE ñ
PLANTINC SOIL
MD(TIJRE

EXISTING SOIL

Cùltom Blend ofNdheôst Nâtivc S,fildflowe. lvú:@ r 13,500 sF SEED MD{

(SEE LANDSCAPE SCHEDULE)

ñffiñ ROWS OF
PLANTS

lssued for Permit Review

cÆ) - *npÉ lhËlopmút - llcrhù Fmæ LûÌ.t - - L6drc.p. lhtohdrg



rl

É9

rgZ6
E-5

j
3

I

E

9-
Èg

E E8

s --!qåts
$=f

z
o
tr

9 H:

= 
2 ËlJ^I.UEZo+d

IU:JZN
ñ3óî9ÞOõ;Ø<oìË
7-JO

333
cÊ.
ul
o-
o-
f

2539

lssued for

Permit Review

PS
DRA}N

PS

CHKO

PS

DACl{

sc rE ASNOÍEO

DAfE: 09/18¿025

L1 .3

LANDSCAPE PLANTINC SCHEDULE PROPOSED SHRUBS:

QN AOTNICÁL NÁME COIIMON NAME stzE

DEdDUdS MæS

15 GtEOtE]^ tRt^c^ltHos v, tNERMts WP&IAL HøIE'LØIST 25'-J'cUFER
Í PT T NUS OC(1DÊilÎ US ,il&tca¡t sfeiltæÊ 2.f - 5' CrupER
t OUERCI,S RUBßA ÊÐ oß 2.5- - 5- CÂUPm

I AUERCUS P&USTE'S PIN OK
7 ACER RUSRUI| 'oCTOBËn clonr ocrogn dær R€D UAPTE 2.t'-YcUPER
J ACER RUSRUM ßÈD UM ¿5'-J'CUPER
6 EEruLA PÆWM CL¿NP UilE AßC't cuMP 8'-'to'HL
0 EUOV øRCtl zs' - 3' CAUPER

J G€RCIS CANADENSS 'FOßEST PANSY ftnEsf PAilsYw 2.5'-3'CUPEF
5 'lL.lA coRo^t'GREENSPRI æ¿ENgTEE UNE¿É'F IITIøEN 25' - t' C[Pfi

POPULUS NEUULOD€S dtaKtMo agÐt 2.5'-JcuPÊR
'll AI{ELANCIHIEB CA¡¡AI'E¡¡SS s8wc.æ&nr c-6' Hf. gs

EVERGREE¡I TREES

z Ptc€A clluc ryilÉ 9RUCE a¡-to' Hf- E¿E

l1 P¡NUS SNGUS t stûil snÈ HE 6'-C xr- E¿n
PINUS ÑICRA AUS'HA¡T EUCT( PTIE 6'-* HÎ- ¡6

7 øítta¡t tEulocx 6'-¡' HA EÆ
7 IHUJ oCOÞEI{fAJ3 a'-C HÎ- EÆ

sltRrrBs

I luEflcltt uTcH HA:¿E s'-s' Ht 7 c[
S1NNGA WIGARIS øtuan HJptE uuc Ð'-s' HT- 7 C[

12 At¡ËL NCHEn 
^AA8E

gilo€agt
I PRUNUS VÃdilmA cllatcøEler s'-3' HT- 7 G^r
22 RHOO@€II{DßO$,P¡ E.JTE P,raøtØæffiN 24'-lF Ht 5 G[
l2 Í.¡x t€Rrlolr.lT TflrEn RED' XN'&Eø *I'Eæffi
21 coRtus g6 na)ßÊEm 2af-JO' Hl' 5 cAL
n FORSYTHIA X fiIENUEDIA ìoRlrft *t 24'-¡0'Hf,5cL
i3 SPIREA .'AP. IJ'fLE PñNCEIS un E Piltcf:ll^ 9M 18--2fSPREåD,7OL
6 HþR¡qNGSA I¡IIII{CE8ÊITE SP'RT f N,ildwE 9ñr I fiOnAI,tÉA rE -2t' SPfrEAD, t C^L

2C) FOIHÊR TTA T^¡,('R 'I'f, AßT ur A&Y rorr/8(N!a r&-2f sPiEÆr, 7 GAL

s æt¡Ðf5E ttølffiil IE--2f SPREAD, 7 CAL

t¡ ct€tHRA Au{lFotl t utnilc8lRD lilttlû,l@SÆM td-2t' SPRE D, 7 c^L
tô lLð( ÉlEil'dPgf ca,tPlcr rú(EmY 24'-lO'Ht ã ê^L
I PÎ{US I|UCO ut@ PilE 2f-30' r{f. 7 c^L
e f xus t EDA 'offiFffirs æNE WADÚIê EY iy-2t' sPREtD, 7 CA!

PEnB{ilt^LS & ORtAl€lt¡rt en¡sses
IBD NEPSÍA 'gX H[.rt garl]. g)( ll¿Ls &ailî awÍ 2CL
rB0 d-otìnñt &,tct( ûa sasail 2CL

s1a,Lt D'& oAntLY 2 CAL

IEO
^lDRæm 

@&DÍ 'd ^df^*g
øtct#t Jliøêem , G L

ED HELNMfldN NMUÞFÍ' euE oAr æas 2øL

WTCH HAZEL INKSERRY PJM RHOOODENDRON WNTERBERRY HOLLY RED TVUG DOGìA/OOD FORSYÌHlA CHOKECHERRY

CLEIHRA SIiADBUSH

PROPOSED PERENNIALS & GRASSES

CAIMINT BLACK EYED SUSAN STELLA D'ORO DAYLILLY BTACKHAW( BIG BLUÊSÎEM BLUÊ OATGRASS

LANDSCAPE NOTES PROPOSED EVERGREEN TREES
I. æMROPAG MMU&ÞNMEÆ S@¡SRODÐNru%ML¡SFORCOWdORS COMBEo[Y. FÄD¡S@NqKSsBffiNruMA4OFPNS O{æUÍmmMm sow o{mDMWqæCBMMRSruLÆPLf
2, m@m6oRg&swptyplÆlAmalNQUMmWCmrc@remmpmo^ssow,

,. &LPNòû]rosru88ÆRO@¡Yæ|ÆSWBÁøMøORæOqm'S@ESNA]mPNORTO
N&ONSE.
4. &PIN@SruBEIOP.DMSÐW3-SIMDÐBM@6. COWMRSru¡¡OrcEæLNSCME
eNolo swow & @cÍ BÐs vlw mlc^@.
J. TCOWdORsruLqEñW&lmrosINoRTOMO N@mIqSEmlL¡¡Woñ
@MSMTBE¡@h@Y@OR@rcreOWRSOMÎ&RAreP|ÆNOLæANqSCNDEDM.
6. NOmsmoNO!!¡NÀAmWSWLBEA@WWmOqæRORmÆpROVdOSæOmOR
NSWe{ffi.
7. mcoNfudo8ruBguspoNsBærc8pÂolmoñLPiÑsacÁNsDsacERoMot@Nocqmv6¡d.
Ræq¡O{SruEECNAÎæMGM ¡,¡Æ¡SNf{LÐÆ COWE|JmþÙEAC@NæO8&¡'NdOS-
8. ÆL(']8DIWRBÐÀMSNd(ruMSEM¡CA@sru8Erc^@ND@Ð. COI{ROORSWLPUSMWmmo]@sÍI@M¡cÁÞ.

9. C¡)i{RCOR W PROVDE A ¿W OUA¡M ON ü Nf,¡@ PlÆ6]ru
tû &!¡oposÐresswLBBpa@ÂMtor ¡mR6llmoNROrcSU&reS.

fç

¡¡. &1@SPEC@W¡eOF @DQs{ryNNCO@LNG9mreMñWÐmo{orNs¡æ.t
@CN SAÞ& FORMRY Sffi P@Lrc ¡Y¡¡&CÑORî

PROPOSED DECIDUOUS TREES:

AUSTRIAN BLACK PINE VWI'TE8PRUCE EASTERNHEMLOCK wlil'fE P|NE AMERICAN ARBORVIfAE SPREADINGYÊW / TAXUSSHRUB

OCTOBERGLORYREDMAPLE AMERICANSYCAMORE REO OAK'TREE

'ii4Ë'ffii
't.f1},r+. ''¡ff . ç..

{!

,!--
;- *'\ .

IMPERIAL HONEY
LOCT ST

PIN OAK'ÍREE FOREST PANSY RÉDBUO GREEN8PIRE LINDEN SHADBLOW SERVICEBERRY CLUMP WTIITE
BIRCH

REOMAPLE YELLOWSIRCH OUAKING ASPÉN

c0nle - Stnps l¡cf.t - tldrldr Pl6rV -



EXHIBIT C
Floor Plans & Elevations

#53SPR25



vËgllðuLê.

-{1
JAN.

I,IANltÄLL

E

a"-_-E

E

c

Þ

VESTTBULE

35r8'

F
tlirll

H
fi

F
ti

n
tli F

F
lil

10510',

ir
:Ii

ËAA

t1ì
lli

É
fi

Ë A

I I

,ADMIN OÉFICÉ
ç
ût

U MECÞtANlC,at-

t T

FIRSTFLOOR 7,554SF
sEcoND FLOOR 1,,t97SF



i-i

it

!

¿

ll tl
lltl
ll il
¡l I

-#

ll tl

ã
m
CN{
mr
m

ãoz

Þ
Izq
!
s2
t

g

ãã
¡

l
ã

I
)

o
!oþ
æ
t\)()
t\'(,l

IItlrÍñ tF)( I
PTäõ
õ;o
z.
În

v,
çl
Io

]\)

Iî

a

Ë

UFPER VALLFY
AGRICU LTU RAL ASSOCIATI O N

I
t
?
e

't4'-3" 9"

a

ll
lt
lt

p

'::'

+

a¡-l-tE



EXHIBIT D
Exterior Lighting Plan

#53SPR25



_ pleNrc
AREA

rl

g

t
+

+
+

i.?l
4

+ +

+

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

I

a

a

a

/c

P

cp ccl
a

a

I

a

+

+

Åt'

+ +

ilil

+?

ti

(-

¿

t

\"

m

\
<l I .t pÅnrc,.[

\)

DRIVF

,l
\ l.-,

,¿'t' 
*m

..r*
I

t

,. PARKING

LP

r\¡ L-^

..*

\

I

I
\

ñ

t-

zo
tr
s

z8F.
J Z 

=rì-.Í
õÉ7zÊ=
F:fó
TOCñ æ. Ylv, O éð

J<
t-rl îr 5FJP
Ø s 3

É.
[rJ
o-
o-
f

ð

E

È

É

9-ù9
.9ìt

E5R
Í98
6;P
ì:f

sËX !
3fâ þ
T*E E
óz a Á
,reE :

2539

PRO.ECT NU}JBER

+

\

lssued for

PermitReview

DESCRPNSI

PS

OESIG¡I

PS

DR^llll
PS

CHXO

\,1

I

'{
| 

|ar*\

\r

.-t-,'' , l.z-.4

I

.\

SCATE 1.-90.

l

\

oAlE t 09118t2025

L2.A
r

\-('.

(

I

.t

il
¡1,

.F

l.
\1

(
\(

\

/r
l*., \I

(\l
.t

lI

t

NOTES:
SITE LIGHTING KEYJ ENTRY

)
\

SEE T2.1 AND L2.2 FOR LIG¡ITING
SPECf FICATIONS AND DETAILS

301503060

-

GRÂPHN SCAII
1' = 30'

chrr'slian St

\**)
* _\./

l

SYM T-ABEL DESCRIPTION

* B PROPOSËD LEO AOIÆD

ra LP PROPOSEÐ (SINGTE) FIKURE A IlGBfPOST

û PROPOSEÐ {OOUELE) FIXfURE &LIGHT POSI

E PROPOSEO ENTRY OOOR IIGHlING

a c PROPOSEOCAñOPYLIGHÍING {rcRvaæRrÂrcNq

Þ r¡/P PROPOSEO EXIT DOOR LIGHTINGWALL PACK

- Ltd'thg Plo.órCfdd - x'#- Stnpd ocdopnlnt -CAD FI|..E:



rl

g

3

ð

¿

a

;
n
I

I

È3 _ee

ËE* ;.-* E
EËa ãfa E

Ëãt Ë89 å
ëËÊ ÍgF Ê

z
o
tr
õbcn9;JØ9

l-<
ilJ q 6ioÉ2(rã:^
z.É.i
i-Ooðl-<T>o5E

JTJf3
É.
Ul
o-
o-
f

2539

lssued for

Permit Review

PS

0gscÈ,|

PS

DRAvôt

PS

ct{K0

sc^tE ASNOIED

D^lE ¡ 09/18/2025

L2.2

(B) BOLLARD LICHTI NG SPECIFICATION (LP & DP) SERI ES LIGHT POST SPECIFICATION NORWICH VT SITE LIGHTING REOIJIREMENTS

SECTION 5.03 pa¡t (8)

RADEAN Bollard
LED Site Luminaire

ÐSEñE
D-Series Size 0
LED Area Luminaire

HÉii * 4¡1

(8) Lighting. To ensùe appropriate lighti¡g while hininizi¡Ê its ud€siGble cffæts,
ùe following gencml stùdüds ¡pply to cll oüldoor lighti¡g with the exæption of
tempomry holidÂy lighti¡g which is cxempt:

a. In oddition toi¡foúatìon rcguding cxtcrior lig¡ting fi¡ucs, i¡cluding faNctyPe,
momting læation ud height, illuminâtion levels úd disribùtion, md color, submittcd
* pm of thc application, o lighting plm, prêpæd by a qualiûed engineer or lighting
€xpcÉ m.y be rcqui¡ed fo¡ F@jêcts detêminêd by the Dcv€lopdent Rcvicw Boüd to
IÞse o potential fo¡ significmt off-siþ imp¡ct duc to the nmtEr, location úd itrtensity
of proposed lightiag li*ucs,

b. Outdær tighting ñxtus shcll be limitcd to ræessed, shiclded or cutoff ÂxNrcs so lhit
no light fiom fxues is eoitted di¡ecdy or hdir*dy ûì ú mgle less thü 15 degæes below
r¡c horizotrtd ùd thc light sou¡æ shdl not b€ visible Êom rdþccnt lots, roads, or mters.
The Color Renderbg Indéx (CRI) shâll be appropÌiate for ihe l@ôtion ofthe site üd
comp¡tible with adþent plopeñics, In most situtions a CRI ofover 80 is accephblo.
Building or polc mounte4 ¡on-¡cflective üghb lsi¡g m incúd6cent bulb of one hm&cd
wans o! lêss not ued to illminate a sign ue allowed,

c, AII oùtdoor lighting shrll b€ kept to lhe ûinimum requircd for safety, sctity úd intendcd
use, consistm! sith the chuacter of ihe ncightrrhood md zoning dßEict in which it i5
locãte¿ To dete¡mine approp¡iate lìghtìng lcvels for a pdirulu usc or site, the Boüd may
considêr lcchnical rcsoEccs, such ¡s The Oudoor Lighting Mùuâl for Vemont
Muicipâlities üd pùblicatiom of the Illuimting Enginecring Sæiery of Nonh Amqiø
(IFJNA).

d. Pski¡g lot lighti¡g shall comply vith tlt shd{¿ls for mtximum mounting height, minimum
illMin¡tion (at dükest spoù úd uìfomiry mtio ü set forù h Thê Outdoor Lithting Mûuãl
for vmo¡t Mhicip¡litie, The Boud may waive these shd¡¡ds for good cÂusc if
appliedon thereofis i¡ôppropricte or wduly budcroomc so long os cxccssive lighting doos

not result ud the proposed lighting schcmc otheilisê m¿ets thc rcqui¡emdts of this section.

Applimts may also be rêquired to use lower momting heights ud illumimtion levcls.
Lþting of prking lots in the Rur¡l Rdidênti¡l Distict is gcnenlly discohgêd cxccPt fo¡
minimum secrity nccds,

Introducdon
'Ile Radeon LED Bollad is an åwôrd{inning,
oergy-*ving, longJife soldjon designed b
perfom the my a bollanC should.

dsi.6 lntrodudion
fho ñodern styl¡ng of lhe D-Series feåtures a
h¡ghly reûned aesthet¡c rhar blends 5oaml6ly
w¡ú lß onv¡ronment Th6 D-Sorl6s offôß $e
benolib of ùe labst in LED t€dnology irro
a h¡gh performônce, h¡gh effiøcy long-life
luminålre.

The photoneùic perforñane rsul6 ¡¡ EiE
w¡6 €@llent unÌfom¡ty. g¡e¿t6r pol€ spãc¡ng
ênd loßr power dsß19. D-Sêilês o!6Endlng
phoþmefya¡d, io ßducing the nuøberof
poles requkêd in ¿r€a l¡ghtjng âppl¡€üonq wiih
tjP-@l energy svings o, 70% aôd expe&d
serviæ lfs of over 100,000 hours.

Spedliotioor

Spcifføtlonr
otø*Þofffi
Hdeþ l1;11åsÈ'd¡'d
Hrfl ðlb
(d.di {e07Ke)

fhe Radean L-ED Bolla¡ds rugged @ùdim,
duoble finish and longla*ing l.EDs will pþvide
yeaß of maiñtenan@.free sil'@.

€?!

Hr¡gh H¿

2¿10'

r4s'

1Æ.

¿lb

.gaF_

wwmm æffilmjE@@ ÉK¡ftPll. RAD8 1..€O P4 30K SYM MVOLT 8lS BCCONATXD DBT XD
sø

Eø ã
a

t

tx
s
I
6
g

tir
,97
w\
tDI

ID

Illroru
Ilru
.Mþ

IlJ@
llm

Í lcÞ¡nhlM
ru fdqMcryi'
¡|ro ßtp*I

rlro usûrw'
']1lm 

Uhltd¡dÀil
mM g49d&m

ût M@

¡
lþt m'

ft
lúùu
w
td
w
m

B
BG
w
rc

mt
M
W 6@tts'

þp.f

f¡

ry

l|W ShTddúúnI ll]!M HhhM'
tt úx

flry
{ffi

&
t
ruu Ouid@r lighii¡g

conswption md
6xffi should inclùd€ timers, dimæ, md,/or scmoß to ¡educc mcrgy
eliminote meede-d lighting.

f 04@!dþ'MÌ,

m hrø¡,k@!
@ kl@4&hÈú'
@ oe(ft,.¡iùR€i

Í ùcùqd¡ú!ú'
ru trEüúrf¡r,
m hqìW
m tutr,dmed'
m h@dhæ'

m
M
M
ro
wro
um
M

kt
The ue of steel o¡ recrity tighting is only pemitted if euù¡l or hffidou cmditioú
reqûì¡e it, Scrity lighting, where deemed næcsary by the Boü4 shôll bc shicldcd md
aimed so tlÉt illudiûtion is dirccted 6ly on to thc desig¡.ted üo md not cst oû othd sås.

Extqior bùildi¡g facâd6 shau not bê illuminated. The Boùd Eay approve the êfrêrior
illuminetion of buildings wilh symbolic or historic sigñi6cmce, p(ovidêd thc m¡ximuñ
illMination on úy veni€l or mgulr roof stface dos noÌ cxceed 5.0 foo! cúdlcs; fixNes
uo cæfully aimed md shiclded so t¡at light is only dirccred onlo thc building suface; úd
lighring fiffies do úohtcd on or neu the building, prcfcmbly directed downwtd, ud ue
designcd to "wuh" the fccidc with light.

Except for cpproved sccuiry ligh¡ing, outd@¡ ñftles sh¡ll only bc illumimted during tlE
ho6 of opemtion for non*esidential uscs u¡lss specifically ôpproved by the Boüd. Hous of
operation shûll include ùy tiúe up to one hoû b€fore or âfi€r all emPloy€es ed Pâtroß or
customeß hâve vcc¡ted the prenises. frus md Bed md Br€¡kfds æ considqed oPø on â

tw€trty-for hour bâsis,

ru beùdd'
rFs m hs4ûffi

þ ü+ehqs'"
Ú hB&hqsc!
ry( ùtd@ftdu(ó

tufâ{Mr4dr6ur,

rutu¡
mvæ
ruME
dD L@d¡tu

fm hto¡4rh@al
{kry ftr4s¡ddrMre/rorqwûùWtilbt

^wí-**€
htt6 l¡uüNU
æñ l¡uu¡uo

E4isiiltu.
d!4Þffil¡futu
.*b.'fr,þF.{e

ñ6SL*&sM

úúÈ¡;D-¡a -

¡ m¡û*úrrrã,
r erdù&sBhbilddq4
r0 arr.*¡*&&ds¡h

&hñLtld6HñfttsÈ¡ntrÉr.üdhrro
m&re@ttd@ h.

ÞS@rtõ&d*J$ b¡@!dim&újml

Qffi dMEBLffi tu]&Þ.aâË(4ølz.kr-@Éw@o
ÈrIzrzbtþs¡t,sh ú.F.¡r¡.r (!w¿ oæljÑwa.%l:.wÐt?t tu:tsr6wø@. r:.-¡¡,i

ârn.@4H.S@kNú!rlfd

BOLLARD LIGHT BASE INSTALLATION DETAIL POLE BASE INSTA OND L (GB) AT-GRADE LICHT POLE BASE INSTALLATION
NOT TO SCALE

NOT TO SCALE

LEVEL TEMPLATE AND FOOTING BOLLARD FIX?I,'RE
IIS SPECIFIED

I" REVEAT
FINISIIED

CR¡'DE

(PER MANIJF.) GROIJND COVER
2 ANCHOR

SIZEAND
BOLTS{UANîITY
BOLT CIRCLE POLE WTTH FIMSHTO MATCH FIXTURE

HÂNDHOLE \4T¡IÌ GROIJNDINC LUG

14"x[4"x24"ÍÍf. DIAMETER ALL AS REQUIRED
BY MANUFACTT,RER. ANCHOR BOLTS.QUANTITY

SIZE AND BOLT CIRCLE
SQUARE CONC. BASE.

TOP SOL
BASE COVBR BY. MANUF.

3/4' CqAMFER TOP EDCE

DIAMETER AIL AS REQUTRED
BY MANUFACTIJRER. POLE WTT1I FIMSHTO MATCH FI)TURE

¡IANDHOLE WTITI GROUNDING LUC

BASE COVER BY. MANIJF.

INCLUDECONDIJIT
ANDMRINGTO
BUILDING

CONDUTTSYSTEM

CONCRETE B/c,sE

f

àz
E

CONCREIE:4,000PsI
AFTER 28 DAYS WITH
ENTRAININO ÀGENT.

FINISHËD GR.ADE

/q,R CONCRETE: 4,000 PSI
AFTER 28 DAYS WIIH
ENTRAININC ACENT.

FIMSHEDGRADE

AIR

ANCHOR BOLTS
PER MANIJF.
REQI'REMENTS

MATERIALS VARY (SÉE PLAN)

å

CHAMFÊR
MA,TTruALS VARY (SEE PLAN)

CONTRACÎOR SHALÍ- CONTRACTOR

COMPACIED
SUBGRADE

DRAWING OF BASE, LIGIITPOLE, DRAW1NC OF BASE, LICIIT
FXTTJRES TO LANDSCAPEFXTURES TO LANDSCAPB

ANCHOR BOLT |NSïALLATION FN|5HED TNSTALLAT|ON

CONÎRACTOR TO PROV¡DE SHOP DRAWING OF BOLLARD, CONCRETE BASE, AND INSTALLÀTION METHODS
To L/q,NDSCAPE ARC}ûTECT FOR APPROVAL PRIOR TO oRDERING ÄND INSTALLÀTION. DEPTI{ AND WIDTH
OF CONCRETE FOOTING SHOWN IS ATPROXIMATE; CONTRÀCTOR SHALL PRoVIDE SHOP DRAWÍNG WITH
MANUF. TEMPLATE INSTALLATION REQUIRËMENTS FOR APPROVAL PRIOR ORDERING AND INSTALLATION.

APPROVAL BEFORE ORDER¡NO MAÎERIALS
AND INSTALLATION.

APPROVAL BEFORE ORDÊRING M.{IERIALS
AND INSTAILATION.

NOTE: I

COMP.A.CIED SIJBGR.ADE COMPACTED STJBGRADE

SITE LIGHTING NOTES
MIN. 18' DIAMETER OR 2" LARGER
TI{AN BASE COVER. (WHICHEVER
IS LARCER)

ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING DESIGN
AND CONDUIT (BY OTHERS). MIN. 18" DIAMEÎBR OR 2" LÀRGER

T}IAN BASE COVER, (WHICIIEVER
IS LÀRGER)

ELECTzuCAL ENGINEERING DESICN
AND CONDUIT (BY OTHERS).

SITE LIGHTINC FIXTURE NOTES:
NOTES: NOTESI

CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE SI{OP DRÂWINOS FOR APPROVAL FOR AI¡ LIGTITING MATBRIALS, FIXTIJRES, POLES
AND INSTÂLLATIoN METl{oDs To LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION rc.ND INSTALLÀTION.
CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINA.TE WITI{ LANDSCAPÊ ARCHITECT ON SITE TO VERIFY ÂND MÀRK LOCÂfiON OF
ALL PROPOSED SflE FIXT1JRES INCLUDING ALL LIGIIT POLES, AND BOLLAI{DS PRIOR TO INSTALLATÍON.

1. PARKINCAREA LIGIITFD(TUREMOI,INTINGHEIGIIT SIIALL BE I5FTFROM ORA.DE(SEE PLAIÐ
2. CONTRASTOR SHALL PROVÍDE SHOP DRAWINC AND POLE ¡IEIG¡Ir(S) TO LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR

A¡PROVAL PRIOR TO ORDERING OF MATERIALS AND CONSTRUCTION.

M m

1. PARKING AREÀ LIG}TT FIXTURE MOUNîING I{EIGIIT SHALL BE 15FT FROM CRADE (SEE PLAÐ
2. CONTRACÎOR SHALL PROVIDE SIIOP DRÄWINC AND POLE HEICIIT(S) TO LANDSCAPE ,ÀRCIIITECI FOR

APPROVAI PRIOR TO ORDERINC OF MATERIALS A.¡ID CONSTRUCTION.

DRAFT
c 0 Fï-E - St¡pH t).vdopñ-t - l{ffih¡ Fortfr - ìlarldl - l¡.d-rp! O¡to¡.drg



rl

g

6

õ þ

ç9 F

ågq
¡õ ã..{ :
## E

z
o
Ë
õrØg'r

J Ø S

¡-<
l!qcto =2=a)/¡t)ó\-roqz.cÉÍ;- (5 éðt-<T>o5E
J<

J
cc
t!
o-
o-
f,

2539

moJ€cf

lssued for

Permit Review

PS

oaöl
PS

DRAffi
PS

CfIKD

SCATE AS NOTED

DAIE : 09/18/2025

L2.3

(E) PROPOSE BUILDINC ENTRY LIGHTI NG (c) PROPOSED PERIMETFR CAN OPY L ICHT INC (C) PROPOSED WALL PACK - BUILDINC EXIT LICHTINC

I ight Fixture E

Rundo Woll Wet. Stotíc White i linær llluminolion System ll luminii BevelID MinF Cyl¡nder - CÀ4SD
Líght Fixture C j I, li i¡

1 l. r.,',i @
Squore Downlighr l'.rt¡lr¡,j

Light Fixture WP
2¿vocchs2od¡ru . HroàCôhitulvøilodôfd
rcs fr)' sr kbq lûi¡s särunowtn oil i*m -¡"nodebod-up b 232'. ;rh tq;lts;pbez
Chs2[a¿lo;doryloô'br . H¡oh€{bdo¡inserkn
Dd fÞ -fi i{úñrNito¡ üriì frded 16É do-* øurårJ efir¡d*rh s"r
Pé8 rorÊd fo, d lo@¡or ffitñlh 

""¿ "o 
b Zí t^NPopkryøo€¡odr*t{m¡had . eeryUelyö.So,ffiihB

lþ,dh' ùp b J0 nÃ d tsjl lo,e ctr {,e . 3 yæiwordi'y

Slim Wall Pack (WPSLS)
Srnãil LF-t) Slim Wall Pacf<

H .g" Ss ,rii Eh @

ñtulroËiq.lr. W 2lq o&id@l¡nkdøl

@
OUICKLINKS

<drlCùa rû toúÉ

FillUNES I
fechnicol lnfomorion El.ckl€l lñûlhU6

. Sdãé moút.dL.cl bJód orwdl
fo4

t4&
CddúÈC!bstrù!uld!

Vôdøl b ssE ar ð hatibkand rsßt
å@ruldoD of d6t ¡nd debÈ.
ft dÆl 3È&9 ¡eå¡ièruål Hndqy
shcbhæt t om wüh Sohdlrs
,w!rC t #ay tum B and ¡ntqËl

údn& hhgås opor Íom t& botom to

. Glovoltdimdno Oos. looÍ) rhndard.

' Shn&rd Uniw¡el Vo¡bqs 02O22 Vðc)
ln4t 50/60 Hz l5l b¡ndres êrry å çy.àr lldd

ward& Rels b lúrßr&4ù?rfuD
ßEáäs¡øú@ÆdimÉ
vewlrr/.t6 ñßtitffiron.þu^t¡ Dov¡ttoHl cyt¡xÞtt tltto¡f¡taa DAf

. Toblhmø,cdbtodonA0r

, l¡Þut øw¿r s¡ây. æftbt dr ¡Uê,

. DdÈrOtr Slålå Pm.rb O çån3.

. ttwú¡nbñreddrdtbrd
ffiñtd dùdy to h6¡di¡g b
rwhz6 h6t 45dpåùon and Þromb

I Ydr mñrry on 4l¡oôd ¡ú¡on
.irw:kdLr¿a:\É! t,ÞJtr6tÊrs rL¡!Ê

rS¿.lp iùmy+ dH
, Ênq.r ûô in$d ú poly.ùr

rddef @d ffirs pr@s þ eitubd
d3m htbr &ns6 w¡hdt
æús trÞee¡lnq.

oDtbl Stôh

i, shchÐrMlôs (r øtusrct U{bs¡
. Ustdlo[É94¡¡dUl8EO,

925 - tæ0
4?5 ø00 500 - 1075 ù#þ Àpprcd w6 3O0Ok cdor

.,!Y.
ñlú, tormob@ rê&.6- Ddvor
@d¡d w¡ó rcC !bdâ.ù, D.jver .nd
k yel*hlcæ@omnts dn Èdly be

ôrdaûrg Codê Ae¡lb& h Ð06 45æK 4OæK ad
SoOd @ld tdp@tu$ pú NSI
c7g.n
üddd cR ol & lo. ¡dK ó$oK
5Od lM Cto ol 70 ttr aOOß

. M¡¡rumÁv5úoerðl¡4 Sdbble Fq Wet lo6to6,
B¡qnugiÈ C@¡o¡@OLq Pr.,fu
aGltd Þrdud xôt ôÛ ndds ât ds
prodsd my b eC gdm 4dt.d-q6s óed sô ùc oqM ÈduÈ
!¡* ål ary*l]d1tr.:rdltr¡'_ to
@rÍrm wbch wsoos ¡r€ qúü€d.

. op€nd4 l3@€ùo: {orc lo +5w

. ùþd¡æV-ædedcbuBo

&edG brf eld o.6tury iî*drêd

l: iåirHi,El:I#f #:35¡:tèî
&t6ñútfr!Æ

eæ)tttrtø tt òh1¿tã4
!rèi?!¡D!øib/'aø¡

ôrãn¡r$ç'\.s¡¿r¡.{É!6r{ó,1
fÆ.ã¡tr'lF. i()#hrÞ4¡t

r¡¡lE¿æeü'drùèÈftG¡'¡
ú?,¿Sr¡€*¡rJrú¡{ùJUrt t[ (Ð !g |rdBri6tn.. ¡ccEoÂÍ!n¡nJ. ci^cjaèù- oH r5?ó:. (sljt 37:-3añ. Fùb'.ep-h

ìúrftf ¿t¡rÊ."trÉLk t(.i;.8 rrrt6dr'd.:rr'ru<e'r!¡-l¡&4 Þiþci¡¡Ne¿

BUILDING MOUNTED LIGHTINC SCHEDULE

Luminaire Schedute
¡AG -8bêt lñáncâñênt ,escrlotlot tLF Totat watts

CMS0-20X3-30K965-s S¡ngte cgl 780925725640 4401-P8, Model

BSSDF-20X3.30f&6rNCtC-UNV-D6E
0.9 1654 20 440

E 4 RUNWW.¡4.72VH0-30K-F Slnqle 0.9 7to 20.5 a2
evPSLS-0 1 L-30 vVPSfS{1L-30 0.9 1180 1? 3Á 2A 6A

NOTE| SEE ARCHITECTURE PLANS FOR ADDITIONAI INFORMATTON.

BUILDINC LIC TING NOTES
BUILDINC LIGIÍNNG FDffURE NOTES:

CONTRACTOR SHAIL PROVIDE SHOP DRAWINGS FOR APPROVAL FOR ALL LIGHTTNG MATERIALS, FD<TURES, AND
INSTALLATION METHODS TO ARCHITECTPRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AND INSTALLATTO¡I, CO¡¡¡N¿CTON Sg¡U.
COORDIN.A'TE \vITÏ{ ARCHITECT ON SITE TO VERIFY AND MARK LOCATION OF ALL PROPOSÊD BUILDING FIXTURES
INCLIJDING PROPOSED WALL P,Á.CKS, CANOPY LIGHTS, ÀND ENTRY LIGHTING PRIOR TO INSTALL,C,TION.

m- ff
I

il I

I
I

I

Itil

wø frc6pþ .TN?.

ùM12¡.?r ffi4h
rþ.* ¿ffi.yis ù*.&t

d.@(

¡hd tu.4 g.¡9x
srcbrs e¿d

DRAFT
NLE: - Sùnps O.vdogñdf - Íqlct - fll# - Lúdlcq. orbllidrg



EXHIBITE
Wetland Report

#53SPR25



tr
*&, AaD Kl,mb fnvíronment.l, LLC

September 9,2025

Mr. Dennis Marquise
The Simpson Companies
P.O. Box 1081

Norwich, VT 05055

R-E: Wetland Delineation Report forNorwich Farmer's Market, Norwich, VT

Dear Mr. Marquise:

On October 3 and 8, 2024 A&D Klumb Environmental,LLC (ADKE) visited the34+l-acre
property located along the west side of Route 5 in Norwich, VT (SPAN 450-142-12743) to
delineate the wetlands on the eastem 18.5-acres of the property.

Wetlands are defined by the US Army Corps of Engineers as: "Those areas that are inundated
or saturated by surface or ground water at a frequency and duration sufficient to support, and
that under normal circumstances do support, a prevalence of vegetation typically adapted for
life in saturated soil conditions. Wetlands generally include swamps, marshes, bogs, and
similar areas." Wetlands are typically determined by reviewing soils, vegetation, and
hydrology. The wetlands were delineated according to the "Army Corps of Engineers Interim
Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers lTetland Delineation Manual: Northcentral
and Northeast Region, (Version 2.0)"

Field Review Results:

The 18.5-acre review area included two mowed agricultural fields and the forested areathat
separates them. Three separate wetland areas were delineated. The wetland boundaries were
flagged with pink WETLAND DELINEATION flagging labeled alphanumerically. These
wetlands are shown on the included wetland sketch map and described below.

At the southern end of the properly a wetland swale flows northeast across the larger field to
the shrub area along Route 5 and then empties through a culvert under the road. The field had
been recently mowed prior to the site visit, therefore the delineation within the field was
completed utilizing soil review and observation of hydrology. The soils sampled within the
wetland met the F6 hydric soil indicator. Evidence of hydrology observed included a
concave, sparsely vegetated soil surface. Dominant vegetation included a mix of grasses,

nanow leaf cattail (Typha angustifolia), spotted jewelweed (Impatiens capensis), climbing
nightshade (Solanum dulcamara), grass-leaf goldenrod (Euthamia graminifolia), and water
parsley (Conioselinum chinense). Within the shrub dominated ends the wetland included red
osier dogwood(Cornus incana), honeysuckle (Lonicera sp.), wild raisin(Viburnum nudum),
glossy buckthorn (Frangula alnus), green ash (Fraxinus pennsylvanica), willow (Salix sp.),

willow-herb (Epilobium ciliatum), and late goldenrod (Solidago gigantea). The wetland
boundary was flagged A-1 through A-63, the wetland extends beyond the southern properly
boundary.

Within the wooded area between the two fields a forested/scrub shrub wetland contains an
intermittent stream channel that flows east under Route 5. The vegetation observed within the
wetland includes glossy buckthorn, European buckthorn (Rhamnus cøthartica), multiflora
rose (,Rosa multiflora), burning bush (Euonymus alatus), sensitive fem (Onoclea sensibilis),

Y.O.b"*t¡S 6o14+6-5o6,

Cantcrbury,Nf-lolzz+ adlcoklumbênv.com



Wetland Delineation Report forNorwich Farmer's Market, Norwich, VT 2

grass-leaf goldenrod, late goldenrod, spotted jewelweed, small white aster (Symphyotrichum
racemosum), New England aster (Symphyotrichum novae-angliss), and reed canary grass
(Phalaris arundinacea). The soils sampled within the wetland met the F3 hydric soil
indicator. The wetland boundaries were flagged B-l through B-19, D-l through D-56, and E-
I through E-8.

Along the northern property boundary a small, isolated forested wetland was flagged C-l
through C-14. This wetland holds standing water for long enough during the spring to allow
for breeding and development of vernal pool species. The soils sampled within the wetland
met the F6 hydric soil indicator. The wetland is sparsely vegetated but the dominant
vegetation growing in the wetland included glossy buckthorn, sensitive fern, and spotted
jewelweed. A follow-up site visit in June 2025 confirmed that the wetland is a functioning
vemal pool.

No other wetlands were found within the review area. The wetlands were reviewed by the VT
ANR DEC District Wetlands Ecologist in June 2025 and were confirmed to be Class II
wetlands. Therefore, the wetlands are State jurisdictional and require a 5O-foot wetland
buffer. Impacts to the wetland or wetland buffer would require permitting through the VT
DEC Wetlands Program. Direct wetland impacts should be avoided. Direct wetland impacts
may also require permitting through the Army Corps of Engineers.

Included please find photographs of the wetlands described as well as the wetland sketch
map. Please contact me with any questions regarding this wetland delineation report.

Sincerely,

ûÅø/

Audra L. Klumb, NH cws #222,cESSw#3s04

President

Resources:
Cowardin et.al., 1979. ClassiJìcatíon of Wetlands and Deepwater Habitats of the United Stales; US

Department of the Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service, Washington, DC

Environmental Laboratory. (1987). "Corps of Engineers lletlands Delineation Manual." Technical Report Y-87-
l, U.S. Army Engineer Waterways Experiment Station, Vicksburg, MS.

Environmental Laboratory. 2012. "Army Corps of Engineers Interim Regional Supplement to the Corps of
Engineers liletland Delíneatíon Manual: Northcentral and Northeast Region, (Version 2.0)" ERDCÆL
TR-12-1, U.S. Army Engineer Research and Development Center, Vicksburg, MS.

Munsell Color (Firm). Munsell Soil Color Charts: with Genuine Munsell Color Chips. 2009. Revised,
Printed in2012. Grand Rapids, MI

United States Department of Agriculture Natural Resources Conservation Service. 2017. Field Indicators of
Hydric Soils in the Uníted States, A Guide þr ldentifying and Delineating Hydric Soils, Yersion 8.1,

L.M. Vasilas, G.W. Hurt, and J.F. Berkowitz (eds.). USDA, NRCS, in cooperation with the National
Technical Committee for Hydric Soils

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. (2023).2022National Wetland Plant List, version 3.6. U.S. Army Engineer
Research and Development Center, Vicksburg, MS. http;//wetland-plants.usace.army.mil/

AaD Klumb fnvíronmcntal, LLC
F.O.b-< t jj,C¡nte¡$"ry, Nl1 orzz+

jk
*&

60r-7+6-r065

adkcoLlumbênv.com



Wetland Delineation Report for Norwich Farmer's Market, Norwich, VT

Photo 1. View northeast across the

J

field along V/etland-A from the southem end ofthe propeffy

Photo 2. View northeast along Wetland-A, near wetland flag A-56

AaD Kl"rb fnvíronmcntal, LLC
F.O.b"* t jj,Cante¡Lury, Nl1 orzz+ +

,Sr",

60r-7+6-ro6,

"dkcoklumbcnv.com



Wetland Delineation Report forNorwich Farmer's Market, Norwich, VT

Photo 3. View west the south of the B/DÆ wetland near wetland flag B-8

Photo 4. View east within the B/DÆ wetland near wetland flag D-31

4

AaD Kl"mb fnrdronmontal, LLC
F.O.b-. t7j,C¡ntc¡Lrg NFI o,zz+

åk
&

6014+6-5o6,
adkcoklumbênv.com



TVetland Delineation Report for Norwich Farmer's Market, Norwich, VT

Photo 5. View south of the of the B/D/E wetland near wetland D-46.

Photo 6. View of an old cistem within the wetland near wetland flag E-l

5

AøD Kl"mb fnrdronmontal, LLC
F.O.b"* t5j,C¡nret$urg, NFI orzz+

Jk
&

6014+6-506,
adLcoLlumbcnv.com



Wetland Delineation Report for Norwich Farmer's Market, Norwich, VT

Photo 7. View of water within the C-wetland the June 2025 site visit.

Photo 8. View of dozens of peeper tadpoles observed during the June 2025 site visit.

6

AaD Kl,.,mb fnvíronmontal, LLC
F.O. õ"* t j j, Cantc¡$uryb NH or22+

t
&

6oS-7+6-ro6,

adlcollurnbcnv.com



\ar.llr,..; rLtlri

fi-l ..,.. .i-¡,..
l¿, i "r' ;1. t./

i. ¡ ,'., :' , ),:

l.l. i.r/'
{. . t -"' t" :':

NOTES

"ftå-.. ($
VERMONÏ

S€ptember 19, 2024
(}

Route 5, Norwich, VT
Vermont Agency of Natutal Resoutces

\,._.,.:i,", ll',:' vermont.gov
ì-.*

\TÊt¡ {-ÈÌ

iri i
tmolçr!ter

't

V YQR}i !ì
. Coñbrd$ lrrr''
Àlhany'tllitl.tllß{

LEGËND

Paræls {standardized)
Roads

æ US HCMaY: I

* sl¿r€Higlñay

€ ros! HirwÀy i¿¡ars 1J

* l6n llehlay (Clds62,3l

Itrr HçM./ (Cqs5 4l

Slale Foßtllrair

N¡løal Fq€ilLail

Prraro fìdoflvâday

, ProposedÊoads

I Town Boundary

87.0 87,0¡reters lo¡ teneral rolèrence oñly. Oala

WGS_1 984_Web_Merelo¡_Auxiliary-Sphore
e Verfonl Agficy of N¿lural Rewræ6

1^ : 142 ?l- 1cm: 17 Melers
THIS MAP IS NOT TO 8E USED FOR NAVIGAÎION



EXHIBIT F

Site Plans

#53SPR25



8RÆc 
'fltl

g
è

'¡.¡Ê;;

d

I
I

o!
6

atr -1*rs¿tû r

f

;tÍ*a¿'¿r9
-Þ- 

4¡w

*à-

s

ä. gsa

PLAN OF REFERENCE INSET
N.T.S.

PARCEL 15-0J8.000
NORWICH ASSoCTATES, rNC,
IREAR 320 US ROUÍE 5 SOUIt{l
ì3 OAK RIOGE
NORWCH, W 05055

PARCEL 15-0,17.000
DEAN & ANN SEIEET'TRUST
J6O HOPSON ROAD
NOR\$CH. W 0505s
BK. 2,11, PC. 750

557.5'É

694.6'r

d
æ-{
l+

EsrArÐ

NOTES
I,I'I APPROXIMA1E EXSNNG PARCEL UNES GRAPHICAI.IY TAKEN FRO*I PLAN OF. . 

RËFERENCE AND TAX MÁP DAlÀ PARCEL 15-056.000
ÉRIK CUTLER 8T¡NCIIARO
lr H(Þsot'¡ L NE)
Þ-ô^ Box to2t
NORilICH. W 05055-1021
BX. 200. PG. 744

(2) IHIS PLAN SEf IS INIÊNDEO FOR LOCALA'ASIEWÂIER PERTIIT]ING PURPOSES
ONLY. PARCEL UNES, EASEMENTS ANO' OIHER UNES REPRESENÎATVE OF
POSESLE OIIìIERSIIIP SHOITI'I ON ÌHIS PLAiI ARE FOR PÊRMIÌÌNG PURPOSES
ONLY. THEY DO NOT DEF]NE I.EGAL RICHTS OR MEEÍ IHE IEOAL R€QUIREMENI:ì
OR STANDARDS FOR A BOUNDARY S1'RV€Y PLAN AND E{AI.T NOI BE US€D AS
IHE BASIS OF ANY LAND TRANSFER. EASET,IENT OR ESTABUSHMENT OF
PROPERTY RIGfITS AND OR REOUIRED SFÍBACÍS ÎHÊRTf,ROI¡.

IRUSf
PARCEL 15-039.mO
UNFARIAN UN¡IÆRSAI.JsT CHURCH Ë
lJ20 US ROUIE 5 SoUÎ{) ô
Þ:o-:B-o-x ì-i-rit - --- '- io
ñbriwr-cx; rli õsos5-ilro É

(3) Er€v noNs ![rHrN s,rRrÆy UMIñi REFERENCED To AppRoxMArË NAVD 88
DAÌUM OERI\ÉD III1H GPS OAS€RVAToI{S.

(4) ELEVAÏoNS c[rrEDE oF sr.rRvEy uMtrs oERtr¡ED FRotl u0AR DAf rAl(EN
FROM IHE IÆRI¡ONÍ OPEN GËOOATA PORTAL

(5)NoR]H oRIENÍAToII REFERENCE0 To w sTAlE PLANE GRID NoRIH DERIIÆD
t$î{ GFS @SÊRVAÎoNS.

(6) AppucANT REspd.rsrBr¡ FoR ogrAtNrNo ANo ÍËËnNc aLt- orì.rER LocÂl-
STAIE, OR FEOERAL PERMITIINO REQUIREMENIS.

(7) AUDRA L KLUM I.IH CÍVS I22i2 OF A T. D KLUMS ENVIRONUENTA¡- IIC (AT'KEì- .DEL'NEÀ]ED 
I}IE WEN¡ND ÈOUNOARIES DzuNE¡ÌEO IOENNHED ON lHE PI}N '

NIH FT¡GS FOI.TOflNO II.IE .US ARMI CORPS OF ENGINEERS RECIOML
SUPPI.EMEI'¡Î TO ÌHÊ CORPS OF ENCINEERS WEI1¡ND OEUNEAI'ION'MÂNUAU
NORTHCENTR L AND llORrHÉAsf REGTON (VERSTON 2,O) <2O12r'.

(8) onNERs oF REcoRDt

.000

r'f .a4t
1''-.{d
\d ,v'v plRcgl r5-o6o.qro

s IIUEL À ¿. HETTNE C.
16 HoPsoN LANE)
Þ.o. Box 634
}|ÄRIFORD, W Of)+7
BK.25{), PC.8Jl

LEE

NORIITCH PARCET 15-042000
SPAN I 786-250-il,{¡t5
ROSE ¿ DY<Ê ÌRUSÍ
c,/o JUOITH G1JRRIER
f539t MONTRESOR
TEESBURG' VA 2O'I7€
vot- 212, Pc, 744

(9) PLAN oF REFERENCÉ

PROPERTY O¡' MRS. HENRY HAZEN
NORIIICH, IERMONI
SCAIE: 1' = 100'. oAIED: MAY 1972, RE\t JULY 1972
PROJECT NO. 12072. BYt T¿¿M SURVEI€
NORlllcH MAP f1l.t

fo
NORWICH

TO
vltt¡ER

oog
É

Éú

g

PARCEL 15-072,000
DRESDEN SCHOOL DISTRICI
l22J us RoUTE 5 soufH)
}5 LYME RoÁD
|t¡NovER, NH 03755

PARCEL 15-O75.OOO PARCEL
17E1 t¡¡VESruENT CO., r.IC HåNoVER
(305 US ROr,JtE 5 SOUÍr) SOCTETY
P.o. Box 61 - Oa7 us
BETHE|- W 05O32-008t P.o, BOX

H¡NOVER,

15-072.f00
CONSUMER COOPERATIVE

Ror,JrE 5 SOun{)
633
NH 03755-065J

PLAN SCALE
1'= 100'

m0

664.3'È

OPEN trEI¡OPEN REU}

FORREST

gDc€ ffFffi

\

FORREST
WEI1¡ND

T]ETD \OPEN

ct^ss il
WEII-A¡ID

\

\.1

r\\\

LOT 15-042.000
34.7t AC.

;r\

600 400

BY:REV. DESCRIPfION DATE: DRAWN gYI c.D.H.

CHECKEO gI: c.o.t{.Parcel Sketch
e/t1/2025DAIE!

2024.1A20PROJECÌT
s.1
SHEET NUMBER

DWc I{AME: 2021-1420

-lT| 
illurook Design

TÂND IJSE CONSULTING, D€SIGN AND PERMITTINC

¡ÈvF& (a0¿ t$-1101
EUÂIL MILEÑOK.O6IONOCOMCßi!I

PERMIT PLAN
NOT FOR CONS'IRUCTION

FOR MUNICIPAL REVIEW ONLY
s/14/2025

l{oruvich Farmers Market
US Route No. 5 & Hopson Road . Norwich. Vermont



ct.css ll
WETÌ¡ND

L
A6

r-

15-042.
34.7

WASÍEIVAÍER
DISPOSAL AREA

â

ct^ss I
$ETllND

S Roufe No.

I ,z
-o-n
'¡ 

t¡\o 
oo**

i
!

\

ù

545

o \
\
I
t
t

,v

ctAss ü
tvEtl.A¡¡o

I
I

LOT

n
PLAN SCALE

1" - 40'

80

PARKINC

!'---l
200

40

200

REV. DESCRIPIION BYi DATE:
DRAWN BY: C,D,H.

CHECKED BY: c.D.H.Existing Conditions Sketch

DA'fÉ s/11/2025

2021-1A20FROJEgt¡

PERMIT PLAN
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

FOR MUNICIPAL REVIRfl ONLY
e/14/2025

s,2
SHEÉ'T NUMBER

IJìitlnrook Design
LAD IISE CONSULIINO, DESIGN AND PERMIMNG

ÍEUF& O0¿ lwot
4lL Ml[BRøKO6t0il@tß¡Í

OWG IJAME: 2024-1A20

Norwich Farmers Market
US Route No. 5 & Hopson Road . Norwich . Vermont



,z
Æ'v
* À**

\

t!

w

f--
t

PLAN SCALE
1" =4o'

80

CONCEPruAL SFASONAL
PARKING AREA, SEE
SHEET C.4

CONCEPTUAL OI'TDOOR
VENDOR, GARDEN &
GATHERING AREA, SEE
SHEEÍ C,2

CONCEPruAL YEAR ROUND
FACILITY & PARKING AREA,
SEE SHEET C.4

CONCEPTUAL DRIVEWAY,
SEE SHEET C.2

(

40

20 200

REV. DESCR¡PTOf'¡ 8Y: DATEI
DRAWN BY: C,D.H,

CHECKEO BY: C.D.H'Conceptual Site Plan

DATE: s/14/2o25

PROJECT: 2024-1820

PERMIT PLAN
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTON

FOR MUNICIPAL REVIEW ONLY
e/14/2025

SHEET NUMBER

c.1Norwich Farmers Market
US Route 5 & Hopson Road . Nonryich . Vermont

Illllorook Design

4ÀU Mt[L6i@&Dls'dwrt

LND I..bE CONSULÌNO. IESIGN AND PEMMING
$Al¡dEftF.gltOSOn.VEMONT 0W

DWG NAME: 2024-1420



ì-_____\
I.-o-rL ENTRANCE DRIVEWAY SECTION

ilOT fO SCALE

w

ctÂss Í
WETI.AND

I
I
I
I
I
l

I
I

I

I

I

I
I

I

)
I

I
I
I

I
I
I
I
I

I

50' rvEn¡¡¡o
EUFFER UMT

I
I
I

I
I

I

I

I

I

I
I

I
I
I

I

I

I

I
l
I
I
l

I
I

¡

I
I
I

I

I

I ,I
I

I
,
I
!o(o

(o

á
WALKWAY ORASS CHÄNNEL

(PRS-TREATVEN1)
DRI\,EI¡¿AY

(o

E
I

(
I

I

sEE SHEEÍ C,3 FoR @l{CFIrr^l
otfi)ooR \ÆNDoR. cÁfÐEt{ &
GAIHERING AREA Sf¡E PI¡II

I

J
I

l

SEE SneEÍ C.¡l FoR úlNcEPIll L
I€AR ROUND FACIT¡fY T PÁRIfiG
PTA{

I
(

,
I

I
I

\

I

I

I

I

t

ctAs:i il
wEfl¡t'tD(¡

IO
I â

)
I

I
I

wEtrtit0
ut1[s

4/o| \
I
I

\

NOTES:

t, l-Ar,lDscÂPING ts coNcEmJA.
SEE I.ANDSC¡PE PI.A¡IS SI OÍHERS.

so'wEn¡ND
BUFFER UMIÍ

/2. DRAI¡IAGE IS CONCEFruÄ. SEE
DRAII.IAGE PI,ANS Bf OIHERS FOR
DEÍAILS.

LrOW IMPACT PRAgflCES S(CH AS
GMSS PREÍREAÏì'ENT CMNNEI.S.
DEEF PREÍRE{II'ENT AASINS, ROOF
DtscoNNEcr DRY WELT.S/ ÌRENCHES,
PERMEABI.E PA!E) SURFACES, GRASS
BUFFERS, ANÐ GRAìÆL WEÏI,ANDS 10
BE IMPLEMEI{IED AS FEASIBLE

PLAN SCALE
1" =20'

40100

(75'+) TTMBER
HAND RAIL

5' SDE

(5,ro'*) nvEER
GUARD RA¡L

(4¡s'+ TqrAL)
mu8[E ìG|.LOW
PANIED CENIER
UNE¡l SO. Ff. IDENflHCAIION SlcN

sfOP SIGN

8RPANIED
2+' UDE rHm

AREÀ TYP.

sromffAlER
UAI{ACEYE¡IT

RÊV, DESCRIPTION BY¡

PERMIT PLAN
NOT FOR CONSTRUCÏION

FOR MUNICIPAL REVIEW ONLY
s/14/2025

DATE:

Conceptual Driveway Site Plan IJìillnrook Design
LAND I.,sE CoNSULING, OESIGN NO PERMMNG

DRAWN 8I: c.D.H.

c.2
SHEET NUMBER

CHECKED BY: C.O.H.

DA'ÍE: 9/14/202s

Norwich Farmers Market
US Route 5 & Hopson Road . Norwich . Vermont

PROJECT: 2024-1A20

DWc NAME: 2O24-1A2O



I
-É-us

NOTES:

1. LANDSC¡PING IS CONCEPnJAL,
SEE LANDSCAPE PIANS BY O'IHERS.

2. OR,AINAGE IS CONCEPruAL SEE

DRAINAGE PLANS BY O]}IERS FOR

DETALS,

LOW IMPACT PR.ACTICES SUCH AS
GRASS PRETREATì¡ENT CHANNEIS,
DEEP PRETREA'IUENT BASINS, ROOF

DISCONNECT DRY WEJ-S,/ TRENCHES,
PERMFABLE PAVEÐ SURFACES. GRASS

BUFFERS' AND GRAVEL WETIJANDS TO

BE IMPLEMENTED AS FEASIBLE.

5. LAYOTJT OF GARDENS AI'¡D
VENDOR BOOÏ}IS IS CONCEPruAL
ACTUAL LAYOI.,TS WLL VARY PER
VENDOR REQUEST.

ì
I

I
l

I

SEE SHEEÍ C.,l FoR coNcEPruAL
YEAR ROUND FACIUÏ & PARKING
sfrE Pt-^l{

Ì
I
I

\
I

\

__J

I

C

656 60
!

o160

50 I

SEÉ SHETT C.2 FOR CONCEPIUAL
YEAR DRTVÊVAY S|IE PUN PLAN SCALE

1" =20'
40

t0'x20' RENFoRCED cR SS
PARKINO SPACES
(GRASSPA\E OR EOU|V.)

fE-2.+, HIGH
REÍAININC WALL

UPPER CRASS PICNIC
ARSJL 2,oo0 SQ. FL :t

GRASS P¡CNIC ARFI.
2,52.5 &. Ft.*

LOIIER ÁDA ACCESSIBIE

.+

RAISED GARDEN BED
AREA I.AYOUÍ OF
E$DEN BEDS T.B.O,

CONCEPruAL LAYOUÍ
oF \ÆNtþR STAU.S,
5,¡110 SQ. FT, :t,
I.AYOUT T.B.D.RENFORCED GMSS VENDOR

AnEA 26,640 SQ. rr. +,
(cRAssPAlE oR Eouly.)

(,+¡'5'* TOTAL)
t)oUBtE YEI..LOW
PAINIED CENTER
UNE

(5s'+) TIMBER
GUARD RAIL

10

REV. DESCRIPTION BY:

PERMIT PLAN
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

FOR MUNICIPAL REVIEW ONLY
s/14/2026

DATE:

Conceptual Outdoor Vendor, Garden & Gathering Area Site Plan $¡llurook Design
LANO IJSECONSULTING, ÐESIGN NO PERMITING

fÉvfa: (302) 7334?01

&^lu M¡LLAR00KOESIGN@OMCß4ilÍ

ORAWN BY: C.D.H

c,3
SHEET NUMBER

CHECKE0 BY: C.D.H

DATE: 9/1+/2025

Norwich Farmers Market
US Route 5 & Hopson Road . Norwich. Vermont

PRoJECI: 2024-1820

DWG NAME: 2024-1420



NOTES:

1, LANDSCÁPING IS CONCEPruAL,
SEE !ÂNDSCAPE PLANS BY OTI{ERS.

2, DRAINAGE IS CONCEPruAL, SEE
DRAINAGE PTANS BY O'IHERS FOR
DEfAlts.

LOW IMPACT PRACTTCES SUCH AS
GRASS PREfREAIT/ENT C}IANNETs,
DEEP PREIREATì¡ENT BASINS, ROOF
DISCONNECT DRY IVEI.ISI TRENCHES,
PERMEABLE PAVEO SURFACES, GRASS
BUFFERS. AND GRAVEL WETLANDS TO
BE IMPLEMENTED AS FEASIBLE.

3. EMERGENCY VEHICLES PROVIDED
45' MIN. TURNING RADIUS AROUND
PERIMEÍER OF PARKINC FACILMES.

4. Ð(CESS SNOW FROM YEAR ROUND
PARKING FACIUTES TO BE PLACED
IN SEASONAL PARKING AREA IF
NEEDEÐ

555-

Êí -"d
s$*

.$

T'

o

*
23\

SEE SHEET C,5 FOR CONCEPTIJAL
OI,IDOOR IÆNDOR, OTRDEN ¿!
C{'I}IERING AREA SITE PI¡N

SEE SHEET C.5 FOR CONCEPruAL
SE¡SOML PÁRKING AREA SflE
P|.¡N

TRAFF|C
tRRO|V,
fi".

DIRECÍIOML
NOT PANIED,

50-

r645

PLAN SCALE
'1" =20'

40

RENFORCED
(cRAssPAVE

PEÐESÍRIAN ENTRY IO
CRASS VENOOR AREA
oR EAUV.)

AI,'IIIORIZED VEHICI..ES ENTRY TO
RBNFORCED GRASS VENDOR ÁREA
(GRÆSPA\E OR EAUV.)

RtrNFORCED
(GRASSPAtÆ

PEDESTN¡¡¡¡ ENTRI TO
GRASS \ÆNDOR AREA
oR EouM.)

PARKINO SPACES 124-
I25 TO BE Fr' READYIE-z,+, HIGH

REÍAINING WALL
FENCED'IRASH. RECÍCI,AELES,
& FOODSCRAP STORAGE AREA

TYP, 15,905 S0. FT

g'xlE' P RKING SP CES TO
BE POROUS ASPHALT WHERE
FEÀSIBLE OR IMPERIIIOUS

AUIHORIZED VEH¡CIES
ONLY SIGN, TYP.

x

WHfTE PANIE) STRAIGHT
ÆIEAD DIRECNOML ARROIV,
TYP.

DRTVÊVAY AI{D PARKING
TO BE ÁSP¡ITLT

¡+¡1,650 SQ.
ast-Es tN
SURFâCÐ.
T, TY?.

5' WIOE ÁSPI{ALT WAIJOVAY
DEUNEAIED WÍIH ¡t'WIDE
WHÍIE PANIED FOGG UNE
TYP.

PANTED CROSS
WAI.X UNES, TY?.

2¡[' HDE WHm

sfoP
ENTER

& DO NOT
SIGNS, TYP.

(5,1O':È) T|YBER
GUÁRD RA¡L

2,f' woE wHm
PANIED STOP

HANDICåP ONLY
PARKING SIGN,
TIP.

STORMWAIER
I¡IAI{AGEMENT
AREIb TYP.

5d

10 0

REV. DESCRIPTION BY: DATE: DRAWN BY: c.D.H.

CHECKED BY: C.D.H.Conceptual Year Round Facility & Parking Site Plan

DATE: 9/1+/2025

PROJECÍ: 2024-1420

PERMIT PLAN
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

FOR MUNICIPAL REVIEW ONLY
s/14/2023

Dwc NÀME: 2024-1A20

c.4
SHEET NUMBER

Norwich Farmers Market
US Route 5 & Hopson Road . Norwich . Vermont

{ìittnrook Design

EMAIL MILLBROOKOBIGN@æMNI.NÍ

LANo [.bECoNSULTING, OESIGN &O PERMNNG
Éanl0cEsmEÍ.w¡09R!vff MoNl 050s



NOTES: l_-\___\
1. IÂNDSCAPING IS CONCEFruA,
SEE IáNDSC,qPE PTÁNS BY OTHERS,

I-o-
I2, DRAINAGE IS

DRAINAGE PLANS
DEfA¡Ls.

CONCEPruAL SEE
BY O'II{ERS FOR VT oÂro

NoNlt

LOW IMPACT PRrcïCES SUCH AS
GRASS PRE'IRFT{ñ ENT CHANNEI-S,
DEEP PREÍREAT}iIENT BASINS, ROOF
DtscoNNEcr DRY WEttS/ TRENCHES,
PERMEABLE PAVED SURFACES, CRASS
BUFFERS, AND CRAVEL WET1JANOS TO
BE IMPLEMENTED AS FEASIBIE,

3. Ð(CESS SNOW FROM YEAR ROUNO
PARKING FACILMES TO BE PLÂCED
IN SEASONAL PARKING AREA IF
NEEDED

SEE SHE T C.+ FOR CONCEPruAL
ì€AR ROUND FÁCIUTY & PARKING
SÍIE PLAN

sq

,%

)
I

I

I

)

^--- ./_-.------

PLAN SCALE
1" = 20'

40 80

20

IO'r20, RtrNFORCED GRASS
PARKING SPACES & ASI.ES
¡f€,190 sQ. Ff. *

I
I
I
r
I

214 \

\
I
l

Noo

790

24',

ut¡fIs oF
Posf

REV. DESCRIPTION BY: DATE:

PERMIT PLAN
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

FOR MUNICIPAL REVIE:W ONLY
s/14/2o2s

Conceptual Seasonal Parking Site Plan {ìillnrook Design
LAND USECoNSULTING, DÊSIGN NO PERMIfrING

15 BTDCESrñt.MtOSoR.V&MoNÌ 05039

EMNU MItrBROOKO6IGilECOMÑ.{T

DRAWN BY: c.D.H.

c.5
SHEET NUMBER

CHECKED BY: C'D.H'

DATE: 9/14/2025

Norwich Farmers Market
US Route 5 & Hopson Road . Norwich . Vermont

PROJECÍ: 2024-1420

DWG NAME: 2024-142O



EXHIBIT G
Property Survey

#53SPR25



Füq t'Iû1Ê4 lll-A à9.: t of I

A" FARRELL

.t
a t

d
__.1Iûlt(r
É

J
C)z5ô(J
Uô

L¡lJI

És
È

C. ARMSTROôIG

È¡0Êt

m ffic{+

I
I
I
t
I
\

J
I

ø
É-

çr
RMffi II

b]

E

E Ë

+-.}*fO fiAnfForu

IVED

ffi$0:
ffi.f.ptPE a
üd tFli oFlro 0¡8Ne þÈÊ
mEgru d*
aloilE qt ¡o d

ws eY,m. {Í.80J

A.
l-

34.7 ACRES

MBS. HENRY HÀZEI.¡

ffi

0r

v6milr¡odile{

gLE

u4



CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

lherebycertifythatonthe lsTdayof October,2025,a Noticeof a Pubtic Hearingof the DevetopmentReview
Board for October 16,2025 to be hetd at the Town of Norwich and via zoom at 6:30 PM in reference to
Apptication #53SPR25: Site Ptan and Conditional Use Review for an Open Air Market and a Mutti-Use
Buitding; Appticant(s): Upper Vattey Agricutturat Association (Norwich Farmers Market); Landowner Dyke

Rose Z Trust; 0 US Route 5 S; Parcet lD: 15-042.000; Rurat Residentiat (RR) District. This notice was sent to
the fotlowi ng abutters ap d [andowner

Zoning Administrator

APPLICANT:

UPPER VALLEY AG RICULTU RAL ASSOCIATION

2514 JERICHO RD

HARTFORD, VT O5OO1

LANDOWNER:

DYKE ROSE Z TRUST 15-042.OOO
C/O JUD¡TH CURRIER

15391 MONTRESORROAD

LEESBURG, VA2O176

ABUTTERS:

NORWICH ASSOCIATES INC 15-038.OOO

43 OAK RIDGE

NORWICH, VT 05055

UNITARIAN UNIVERSALIST CHURCH 1 5-O39.OOO

POBOX1110
NORW|CH, VT 05055-1 1 10

GAMMELL TONYA L 15-041 .OOO

304 US RTE 5 SOUTH

NORW|CH, VT 0s055

ACORN TO SKY INVESTMENTS VT LLC 15-043.OOO

209 DARTMOUTH COLLEGE HWY

LEBANON, NH 03766

CARTER DANIEL 1 5-O44,OOO

416 HOPSON RD

NORWICH, VT 05055

GREENE PATRICIA 1 5-046.OOO

378 HOPSON RD

NORWICH, VT 05055

#53SPR25
Exhibit 3



SEIBERT TRUST DEAN AND ANN 15-047.OOO

386 MAIN ST

NORWICH, VT 05055

BLANCHARD ERIK CUTLER TRUSTEE 15-056.OOO

ERIK CUTLER BLANCHARD TRUST

PO BOX 1021

NORWtCH, VT 05055-1021

LEE SAMUEL A 15-060.000

LEE HELENE C

P.O. BOX 634

HARTFORD, W 05047

NIEM PROPERTIES LLC 15-071.OOO

PO BOX 584

NORWICH, VT 05055

DRESDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT 1 5-072.OOO

45 LYME RD

HANOVER, NH 03755

HANOVER CONSUMER 15-072.100
cooP socrEw
PO BOX 633

HANOVER, NH 03755-0633

1781 INVESTMENT CO LLC 15-073.040

PO BOX 61 MARSH MEADOW RD.

BETHEL, VT 05032



 

 

 

TOWN OF NORWICH 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 

Draft Minutes 

Thursday, September 18th, 2025 

Tracy Hall and Zoom 

 

Members present: Patrick Bradley (chair), Alec Orenstein, Linda Gray, Don McCabe, Emily 

Myers, Matthew Stuart,  

Alternates present:  

Members absent: Sue Pitiger, Barry Rotman, Elissa Close 

Staff: Steven True, Zoning Administrator 

Minute Taker: Steven True 

 

Members of the Public: None 

 

1. Call to Order: by Chair Bradley at 6:33 pm 

 

2. Approve Agenda: McCabe moved, Gray seconded to approve the agenda. The motion 

carried unanimously.  

 

3. Approve Minutes: Orenstein moved, Meyers seconded a motion to approve June 26th, 

2025, minutes as submitted. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

4. Public Comment: none 

 

5. Review Boundary Line Adjustment #86BLA03 to correct an error in the land 

record: True introduced the background to the matter: In 2004, the DRB approved, and 

the chair signed a Boundary Survey representing a boundary line adjustment #86BLA03.  

Subsequently in 2005, the landowner recorded another Boundary Survey which was not 

approved by the DRB.  After receiving this background, and reviewing the materials, 

Linda Gray made a MOTION authorizing the Chair to sign the mylar, and to have the 

Zoning Administrator record the correct PLAT in the land records. Emily Meyers 

seconds. The motion carried unanimously.   

 

6. Zoning Administrator Update and Upcoming Matters:  

a. True had the Chair sign the Rules of Procedure and Conflict of Interest Policy 

approved May 25. 2025 

b. True had the DRB review and the Chair sign a letter to the Selectboard requesting 

action to correct an error in the Norwich Consolidated Ordinance’s document. 

c. True introduced the two upcoming DRB hearings scheduled for the October 16th 

DRB regular meeting. 

 

7. Other Business: None 

 

8. Meeting Adjournment: 7:15 Motion to adjourn. All in favor. 

 

AUDIO and VIDEO RECORDING available here 

https://www.youtube.com/@townofnorwichvt9418/videos

	1_10-16-2025Agenda_09-18-25DraftMinutes
	DRB Agenda 2025-10-16

	2_00DuttonHill_#54DE25_Documents_10-06-2025
	1_00DuttonHIllRD_#54DE25_Hynes_CoverPage_AppDocList_9-24-2025
	2_00DuttonHillRD_20-060.000_#54DE25_Hynes_Applicant_Exhibits1-7_09-24-2025
	3_00DuttonHill_#54DE25_Exhibit8_CertificateofMailing_Signed_10-01-2025

	3_00USRoute5S_#53SPR25_Documents_10-06-2025
	1_00USRoute5S_#53SPR25_UpperValleyAgriculturalAssociation_DocList_09-17-2025
	2_00USRoute5S_#53SPR25_DykeTrust_UpperValleyAgriculturalAssociation_Applicant_Exhibits_09-24-2025
	20250925094142
	20250925093949
	20250925093908

	3_00USRoute5S_#53SPR25_Exhibit3_CertificateofMailing_Signed_10-01-2025

	1_10-16-2025Agenda_09-18-25DraftMinutes
	DRB Minutes 09-18-2025 Draft




